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Another Feather in our Cap!
At Elecon EPC we believe that being the pioneers in the field of Bulk Material Handling 
Equipment in India adds to our responsibilities towards the industries we cater to. Our 
endeavor to be ‘Always a step ahead in Technology’ has propelled us to attain many firsts to 
our credit.

The latest feather to our cap is the pipe conveyor that we have successfully commissioned at 
Manikgarh Cement. This pipe conveyor is the largest single flight conveyor in India covering 
a massive 7.5kms, which will be used for transporting Limestone from mines to the plant. 
The salient feature of this conveying system is that with its pipe framed triangular gantries it 
glides over a dam, hilly terrains and various roads. Two embedded maintenance trolleys help 
in easy inspection and maintenance of the conveying system.
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CONTENTSElecon EPC Projects Ltd. is a subsidiary of Elecon 
Engineering Company Limited. Strategically formed, 
we manage the core material handling equipment 
product range through engineering expertise. We are 
one of the largest Bulk Material Handling Equipment 
manufacturing companies in India with in-house 
design, manufacturing, fabrication, component 
manufacturing and support services in a vertically 
integrated model.

We are the first Company in India to have manufactured 
sophisticated equipment for Bulk Material Handling 
and have our products and solutions deployed in 
almost every industrial sector in India. Our product 
range includes design, engineering, manufacturing, 
supply, erection and commissioning of:

•	 Wagon	tipplers

•	 Bucket	wheel	stacker/reclaimers

•	 Barrel-type	blender	reclaimers

•	 Fertilizer	reclaiming	scrapers

•	 Limestone	pre-homogenizing	and	blending		
 plants

•	 Single	and	twin	bucket	wheel	bridge-type		
 reclaimers

•	 Crawler-mounted	trippers

•	 Stationary	and	shift-able	conveying	systems	for		
 open cast lignite mines

•	 Integrated	coal	handling	plants	for	power		
 stations

•	 Underground	mining	conveyors

•	 Open	cast	conveying	systems

•	 Ferrous	and	non	ferrous	foundry	products

•	 Specialized	Pipe	Conveying	Systems	

Elecon EPC delivers engineering, procurement, 
construction (EPC), and project management to 
public and private sector clients in diverse industries 
globally. For more than six (6) decades, clients have 
depended on Elecon as their Company of choice to 
undertake challenging projects, many of which are at 
remote locations across the globe. Clients depend on 
our engineering expertise and our skilled workforce 
to deliver projects safely, on schedule, within budgets 
and with high quality standards.

With ultra-modern manufacturing facility and a strong 
and diversified product portfolio, the Company is 
amongst the key manufacturer of various products 
for industries like Power, Chemicals, Steel, Plastics, 
Elevators, Palm Oil, Marine Engineering, Port 
Mechanization,	 Cement,	 Sugar,	 Mining,	 Petroleum,	
Coal	Handling	and	Fertilizers.

ELECON EPC AT A GLANCE
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In the bulk material handling equipment business we enhanced our value chain by reinforcing 
development, production, sales and services operations. We have re-structured our business 
to	 create	 a	 more	 efficient	 and	 lean	 organization.	 Our	 leadership	 team	 is	 enthusiastic	 about	
driving a focused, independent company that continuously strives to be a global leader in the 
bulk material handling equipment industry. Our products focus on customers’ need of increased 
volumes, resulting in higher margins. We expect to be able to focus on serving each of our market 
segments and customer application needs more effectively and to respond flexibly to changing 
market conditions.

Prashant Amin   -Director

The success of the business we operate in is intrinsically linked to the performance of the 
economy and the industry. Given that last 3-4 years have been tough for the industry in general 
with a lot of projects in the power and mining sectors failing to see the light of the day, your 
Company’s performance for the last fiscal was overall satisfactory, as compared to the industry 
performance. 

 We are confident that the new government at the centre is taking concrete steps to kick-start the 
growth momentum in the key industries we operate in and the effects of this process will be seen 
with a lag in terms of our financial performance. The strong order book should hold the business 
in good stead for the foreseeable future.

From a financial standpoint, the key focus has been on recovering monies from the customers 
and we have left no stone unturned in ensuring that outstanding dues are paid to us at the 
earliest. We are confident about the business for the coming fiscal and the financial performance 
will reflect the same as we move forward.

Rajat Jain   -Chief Financial Officer

Elecon EPC Projects Limited’s timely measures, strategies and decisions made during the period 
of economic downturn i.e. between 2012 and 2014, have started showing the results in the year 
2014 – 15. Your Company has managed to put behind the ill-effects of recession and in spite 
of depression in the domestic as well as in international markets for bulk material handling 
equipment; it has emerged as a winner with increased productivity in the last fiscal year. 

Indian government’s new initiatives like coal block allocations, improved regulations in 
infrastructure sector, etc; combined with our progressive approach towards technological 
advancements are driving us towards sustainable growth and improved revenues in the coming 
years. 

Arvind Shore   -Chief Excutive Officer

With lucid policies and plans for growth and development, India is poised to take a big lead 
in revival of the worldwide economy. Given the market conditions the year was good for our 
company in terms of sales and profitability, with further sustained growth expected in the coming 
years.

The stable and market friendly policies will open up various sectors and provide opportunities 
for expansion in infrastructure industry, which will usher in growth in the bulk material handling 
business. With a strong current unexecuted order bookings of more than `1150 crores and an 
environment of optimism, our Company’s performance will be healthier in the financial year 
2015-16.

Prayasvin Patel   -President (Operations)

MANAGEMENT INSIGHT
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Elecon EPC’s experience in offering highly sophisticated 
solutions for Bulk Material Handling enables us to take on the 
most challenging tasks and execute them with competence. The 
pipe conveyor (in image) gliding over difficult terrain helps in 
considerably reducing the conveying time of raw materials and 
helps to attain optimum production through availability of raw 
material. By introducing advanced technologies in the market, 
we have played the role of a catalyst in fostering growth.
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Strengths:

At Elecon EPC Projects Limited, we have a state of the 
art manufacturing facility spanning 1,17,000 sq. meters., 
equipped with new generation CNC and NC machines 
tools and equipment for manufacturing, quality control 
and testing. Our superior manufacturing infrastructure 
coupled with our highly skilled and experienced 
workforce ensures that our products and solutions are 
robust and dependable for years to come.

We believe that being the pioneers in the industry, we 
are always on the lookout for new developments through 
expansions of our product range and continuous 
improvement of our current offerings. Some of our new 

advancements include pipe conveyors, high speed rollers 
as well as yard management and man less machines.

Achievements:

- An order of  ̀ 79.77	Crores	for	supply	of	idlers	/	pulleys	
through	TKIL	/	L&T	for	Adani	Dhamra	/	Dahej/	Mundra	
project 

- An order of `45.15 Crores for supply of Stock yard 
equipment through ESSAR Projects India Ltd. for  
1 x 500 MW Neyveli Lignite BoP project

- An order of `43.81	Crores	 for	 supply	 of	 conveyors	 /	
bagging system from GSFC, Gujarat

CNC Heavy Duty Lathe

STRENGTHS, ACHIEVEMENTS &
GROWTH DRIVERS

Pipe	Conveyor	at	Manikgarh	Cement,	Unit-II	(Near	Plant	Site)
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Sales Industrywise
(From 1st April, 2014 to 31st March, 2015)

Orderbook Industrywise
(From 1st April, 2014 to 31st March, 2015)

Pending Orders Industrywise
(As on 31st March, 2015)

Power 
41%

Power 71%

Cement 7%

Fertilizer	14%

Steel 6%

Others 9%

Steel 2%

Port 29%

Port 1%
Minerals 1%

Mining 3%

Mining 9%

Cement 7%

Power 57%Mining 17%

Others 9%

Cement 10%

Port 2%
Minerals 1%Steel 4%

Lump Breaker

- An order of `38.00 Crores for supply of 2 nos. stacker 
cum reclaimer machines through Adani Enterprise 
Ltd. for Dahej Port project 

- An order of `17.13 Crores for supply of Barrel type 
Blender reclaimer through TISCO, Jamshedpur for 
their Steel plant 

- An order of `14.68 Crores for supply of conveyors 
through Wonder Cement, Rajasthan 

- An order of `14.34 Crores replacement of new side 
arm	charger	in	place	of	beetle	chargers	for	RRVUNL,	
Kota TPS 

Growth Drivers:

A boom in the Power & Infrastructure sector with 
supportive policies of the government in the center, 
there will be a rise in demand from different industry 
verticals such as Power, Steel, Cement, etc. along with 
allied industries. This will help the economy to regain its 
growth momentum. Further development in industries 
like power, port, etc. will spur the demand resulting into 
growth of Material Handling Equipment industry.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting this 24th 
Annual Report together with the Audited Financial 
Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2015.

HiGHliGHtS OF PeRFORMAnCe 

For the year ended on 31st March, 2015, the Company 
has achieved a Turnover of `52,014.24 Lacs as against 
`50,242.68 Lacs in the previous year, representing a 
marginal increase in Turnover by 3.53% despite the 
tough market and economic conditions which is expected 
to improve in the coming years.

For the year ended on 31st March, 2015, the Company 
has achieved Earnings Before Interest (Finance Cost), 
Depreciation	 &	 Amortization	 and	 Tax	 (EBIDTA)	 of	
`4,367.03 Lacs as against the EBIDTA of `4,409.51 
Lacs during the previous year, representing marginal 
decrease in EBIDTA by 0.97%. 

The Company holds total unexecuted orders more than 
`1,15,000 Lacs as on 31st March, 2015. This will help us 
to continue to have sustainable growth in coming years.

DiviDenD

Your Directors felt it prudent to retain the earnings for 
the year under review to be ploughed back in business, 
which shall result in further augmentation of the 
Company’s Growth.

SHARe CAPitAl

During the year under review, the Company has 
issued and allotted 1,27,32,000 Non-Cumulative Non-
Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of `100/-	
each aggregating to `12,732 Lacs fully paid-up to Elecon 
Engineering Company Limited for consideration other 
than cash. 

Out of the outstanding amount of slump sale 
consideration of `12,732.43 Lacs; `0.43 Lacs  was paid 
in cash to Elecon Engineering Company Limited and 
balance amount of `12,732 Lacs was converted into 
Preference Shares as mentioned herein above. 

Multi-Axis, Multi-Station Welding Robot, Model-ROMAT 350
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FinAnCe

Cash and cash equivalent as at 31st March, 2015 was 
`311.43 Lacs. The Company continues to focus on 
judicious management of its working capital. Receivables, 
inventories and other working capital parameters were 
kept under strict check through continuous monitoring.

Deposits

The Company has not accepted deposit from the public 
falling within the ambit of Section 73 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) 
Rules, 2014. 

Particulars of loans, Guarantees or investments

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered 
under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form 
part of the Financial Statements provided in this Annual 
Report. 

SuBSiDiARy, JOint ventuRe AnD ASSOCiAte 
COMPAnieS 

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture 
or Associate Company.

DiReCtORS

Retire by rotation

In accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of 
Association of the Company, Shri Prashant 
C. Amin, Director retires by rotation at the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the 
Company and being eligible, offers himself for 
re-appointment.

New Appointment 

Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 
2013, Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati, was appointed 
as an Additional Director of the Company 
with effect from 3rd February, 2015, to comply 
with the requirement of Independent Woman 
Director under Section 149 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Her experience in the field of 
foundry and business management will 
provide essential guidance to the Company. 
She holds office upto the date of the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

The Board welcomes Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati 
and considers it an advantage to the Company 
to benefit from her experience and knowledge. 

In terms of Section 149 and other applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013, an Independent Director 
shall hold office for a term of five consecutive years and 
not be liable to retire by rotation.

Accordingly, Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati shall be appointed 
as an Independent Woman Director to hold office for a 
term of five consecutive years from the date of ensuing 
Annual General Meeting of the Company and shall not 
liable to retire by rotation.

Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati fulfills the conditions specified in 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder for 
her appointment as an Independent Woman Director of 
the Company and is independent of the management and 
has also given declaration that she meets the criteria of 
independence as laid down under Section 149 (6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Members’ approval for her appointment as an 
Independent Woman Director, under Section 149 & 152 
of the Companies Act, 2013 has been sought in the Notice 
convening the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

FinAnCiAl ReSultS:                                                    

31.03.2015Particulars 31.03.2014

(` in Lacs)

Profit Before Tax, Finance Cost, Depreciation & 
Amortization	and	Adjustments for previous year  

less : Finance Cost

Depreciation	&	Amortization

Profit Before Tax 

less: exceptional items

Less: Provision for Tax 

Deferred Tax

Mat Credit Entitlement

Short/(Excess)		Prov.	of	earlier	years

Profit After tax

Add:

Minority Interest

Share of Profit of Associates

Previous Year Balance Brought Forward

PROFit AvAilABle FOR APPROPRiAtiOn

APPROPRiAtiOnS:

Proposed Dividend

Income Tax on Dividend

Transfer to General Reserve

Balance Carried Forward

4367.03

2868.04

1170.80

328.19

--

146.00

(71.42)

--

--

253.61

--

--

1640.72

1894.33

--

--

--

1894.33

4409.51

3125.13

934.42

349.96

--

73.35

180.42

(73.35)

--

169.54

--

--

1621.18

1790.72

--

--

150.00

1640.72

The summary of operating results for the year and appropriation of divisible profits 
is given below: 
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Board Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Rules made thereunder, the Board has carried out an 
annual performance evaluation of its own performance, 
the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the 
working of its Committees. The manner in which the 
evaluation has been carried out has been explained in 
the Corporate Governance Report.

DeClARAtiOn By inDePenDent DiReCtORS

The Company has received necessary declaration from 
each Independent Director under Section 149(7) of the 
Companies	 Act,	 2013,	 that	 he/she	 meets	 the	 criteria	
of independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

StAtutORy DiSClOSuReS

None of the Directors of your Company is disqualified as 
per provisions of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 
2013. Your Directors have made necessary disclosures, 
as required under various provisions of the Act.

Key MAnAGeRiAl PeRSOnnel:

Appointment of Chief Financial Officer

Due to the applicability of Section 203, Shri Rajat Jain, 
being the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Holding 
Company i.e. Elecon Engineering Company Limited was 
appointed as the CFO of the Company w.e.f. 1st May, 2015. 

Appointment of Chief Executive Officer

Due to the applicability of Section 203, Shri Arvind 
Shore, was appointed as a Chief Executive Officer of 
the company w.e.f. 1st May, 2015 for a period of three (3) 
years. Shri Shore has a successful and diverse career, 
spanning over 34 years in the fields of Mining & Bulk 
Material Handling and EPC including setting up and 
growing new businesses.

Change in Company Secretary

Shri Kamlesh Patel had resigned from the office of the 
Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. the closing 
business hours of 14th November, 2014. Your Directors 
place on record their sincere appreciation for the 
valuable contribution made by him.

Smt. Bharti Isarani has been appointed as a Company 
Secretary of the Company from 15th November, 2014. 

Your Directors welcome all the Key Managerial Personnel 
of the Company. 

DiReCtORS’ ReSPOnSiBility StAteMent 

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
with respect to the Directors’ Responsibility Statement, 
it is hereby confirmed that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for 
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2015, the 
applicable accounting standards had been followed 
alongwith proper explanation relating to material 
departures, if any; 

(b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as 
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the Company as at 31st March, 2015 and of the profit 
and loss of the Company for the year ended on that 
date;

(c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care 
for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities;

(d) the annual financial statements have been prepared 
on a going concern basis; and

(e) the proper systems to ensure compliance with 
the provisions of all applicable laws were in place 
and such systems were adequate and operating 
effectively.

MeetinGS

During the year, four Board Meetings, two Audit 
Committee Meetings, one meeting of Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee, one meeting of Nomination 
& Remuneration Committee and one separate meeting 
of Independent Directors were convened and held. The 
details of which are given in the Corporate Governance 
Report. The intervening gap between the Meetings was 
within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 
2013.

AuDit COMMittee:

During the year, the Audit Committee of the Board of 
Directors was constituted by Board of Directors of the 
Company in accordance with the provisions of Section 
177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the 
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 
2014.  
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The Audit Committee comprises of following Members:-

1. Shri Chirayu R. Amin  - Chairman

2. Shri Prashant C. Amin   - Member 

3. Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati - Member 

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the 
Secretary of the Audit Committee. 

The Audit Committee shall act in accordance with the 
terms of reference specified in writing by the Board, 
which shall, inter-alia, include -

-  The recommendation for appointment, remuneration 
and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;

-  Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and 
performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

-  Examination of the financial statements and the 
auditors’ report thereon;

-  Approval or any subsequent modification of 
transactions of the company with related parties;

-  Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

-  Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, 
wherever it is necessary;

-  of Internal Financial Controls and Risk Management 
systems;

-  Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public 
offers and related matters;

All recommendations made by the Audit Committee 
during the year were accepted by the Board.

nOMinAtiOn AnD ReMuneRAtiOn COMMittee:

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and 
its Powers) Rules, 2014, Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee of the following Directors was constituted by 
the Board of Directors, during the year which comprises 
of following Members:- 

1. Shri Chirayu R. Amin   - Chairman

2. Shri Pradip M. Patel    - Member 

3. Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati - Member 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has 
formulated the Policy and the criteria for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 
Director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating 

to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and other employees of the Company.

Remuneration Policy

The Board has, on the recommendation of the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee, framed a 
policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior 
Management Personnel and their remuneration. The 
Remuneration Policy is stated in the “Annexure A”.

CORPORAte SOCiAl ReSPOnSiBility initiAtiveS

As a first step towards the Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR), the CSR Committee has formulated the Policy on 
the Corporate Social Responsibility duly approved by the 
Board of Directors of the Company.

During the year under review, the Company had to 
spend `31.50 lacs towards the CSR activities. However, 
the Company has spent only `2.05 lacs towards the CSR 
activities.  

During the financial year, as the Company was facing 
severe cash flow issues and was not in a position to 
spend cash on CSR activities as the funds were required 
to manage the working capital requirement of the 
operations, the Company did not spend balance CSR 
amount for the year.

The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed herewith 
as “Annexure-B”.

RelAteD PARty tRAnSACtiOnS

All related party transactions that were entered into 
during the financial year were at an arm’s length basis 
and were in the ordinary course of business. 

A statement giving details of all related party transactions 
is placed before the Audit Committee and the Board of 
Directors for their approval. 

The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved 
by the Board is uploaded on the Company’s website. 
None of the Directors has any pecuniary relationships or 
transactions vis-a-vis the Company.

Particulars	 of	 contracts/arrangements	 made	 with	
related parties are attached herewith as “Annexure – C” 
in AOC-2 format. 

AuDitORS

Statutory Auditors

Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
Messrs Thacker Butala Desai, Chartered Accountants, 
Navsari, (Firm Regn. No. 110864W) has been appointed 
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as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the period 
from 23rd Annual General Meeting to 28th Annual General 
Meeting in the 23rd Annual General Meeting held on 4th 
August, 2014 by the Shareholders of the Company. In 
terms of the first proviso to Section 139 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the appointment of the auditors shall be 
placed for ratification at every Annual General Meeting. 
Accordingly, the appointment of Messrs Thacker Butala 
Desai, Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the 
Company, is placed for ratification by the shareholders. 

Messrs Thacker Butala Desai, Chartered Accountants, 
Navsari, (Firm Regn. No. 110864W) has confirmed their 
eligibility under Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Rules made thereunder for re-appointment as 
Auditors of the Company.

Cost Auditors

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with The Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment 
Rules, 2014, the Cost Audit records maintained by the 
Company in respect of its activity are required to be 
audited. Your Directors had, on the recommendation of 
the Audit Committee, appointed Messrs Y. S. Thakar & 
Co. to audit the cost accounts of the Company for the 
year ended on 31st March, 2016 on a remuneration of 
`50,000 p.a. plus taxes as applicable and out of pocket 
expenses. As required under the Companies Act, 2013, 
the remuneration payable to the cost auditor is required 
to be placed before the Members in a General Meeting 
for their ratification. Accordingly, a Resolution seeking 
Members’ ratification for the remuneration payable to 
Messrs Y. S. Thakar & Co., Cost Auditors is included at 
Item No. 5 of the Notice convening the Annual General 
Meeting.

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, 
the Company has appointed CS Ashwin Shah, a Company 
Secretary in Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit 
of the Company. The Report of the Secretarial Audit is 
annexed herewith as “Annexure D”.

viGil MeCHAniSM / WHiStle BlOWeR POliCy

The Company has established Vigil Mechanism and 
adopted a Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instances 
of fraud and mismanagement, if any. The Policy is 
explained in detail in the Corporate Governance Report 
and also posted on the website of the Company.

CORPORAte GOveRnAnCe

Your Company is committed to maintain the highest 
standards of Corporate Governance, reinforcing the 
valuable relationship between the Company and its 
Stakeholders.

A detailed report on Corporate Governance together with 
Management Discussion and Analysis and a certificate 
from the Company’s Auditors form part of this Report.

eneRGy COnSeRvAtiOn, teCHnOlOGy ABSORPtiOn 
AnD FOReiGn exCHAnGe eARninGS AnD OutGO

The particulars required to be disclosed in this report 
pursuant to the provision of The Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 are given in “Annexure-E” forming part of 
this report.

extRACt OF AnnuAl RetuRn

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual 
Return in form MGT-9 is annexed herewith as 
“Annexure-F”.

PARtiCulARS OF eMPlOyeeS

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read 
with Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of The Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in 
respect of employees of the Company, is annexed to this 
Report as “Annexure-G”, forming part of this Report. 

inSuRAnCe

The Company takes a very pragmatic approach towards 
insurance. Adequate cover has been taken for all movable 
and immovable assets for various types of risks.

SiGniFiCAnt OR MAteRiAl ORDeRS PASSeD By tHe 
ReGulAtORS OR COuRtS:

There is no significant or material orders passed by 
the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which would 
impact the going concern status of the Company and its 
operations in future. 

inDuStRiAl RelAtiOnS/PeRSOnnel 

Your Company is committed to upholding its excellent 
reputation in the field of Industrial relations. Through 
continuous efforts, the Company invests and improvises 
development programmes for its employees.

RiSK MAnAGeMent 

During the year under review, your Directors have 
constituted a Risk Management Committee which has 
been entrusted with responsibility to assist the Board in 
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overseeing and approving the Company’s enterprise wide 
risk management framework. The Company monitors 
and reports on the principal risks and uncertainties that 
can impact its ability to achieve its strategic objectives. 

ACKnOWleDGeMent

As trustees of the Company, the Directors acknowledge 
the unstinted support received from Vendors, 
Traders, Customers, Bankers, Financial Institutions, 
Shareholders and the Society at large.

The Directors also acknowledge the support of the 
Auditors, State and Central Governments’ Officials, 
Business Partners, Solicitors, Advisors and Employees. 
The growth of the Company would not have been possible 
without their unfailing support.

Your Directors look forward to having a long and fruitful 
relationship with all of them.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors,                              

(P. M. Patel)
Chairman 
DIN : 00012138 

Place: Vallabh Vidyanagar 
Date: 30th April, 2015
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Overview

Growth in emerging market and developing economies 
is projected to remain broadly stable in 2016.  The 
Indian Economy in 2014-15 has emerged as one of the 
largest economies with a promising economic outlook 
on the back of controlled inflation, rise in domestic 
demand, increase in investments, decline in oil prices 
and reforms among others. Inflation remains too low 
in advanced economies, an indication that many of 
these economies have substantial output gaps, and 
deflation continues to be a concern. In an annual 
report, the IMF forecast that Indian Economy would 
grow by 7.5% in the 2015-16 fiscal year starting on 1st 

April, 2015.

Global financial markets have since calmed and 
capital	flows	to	emerging	economies	are	stabilizing.	In	
the outlook, capital flows to emerging economies are 
projected to pick up slowly from the low levels seen 
in recent times, in line with the expected recovery in 
global growth. Global trade is projected to pick up 
ahead of GDP as the global recovery strengthens, 
but the difference between trade and GDP growth is 
projected to remain below recent precise averages. 
In a number of major emerging market economies, 
growth projections for 2015-16 have been marked 
down.

Monetary policy should thus remain accommodative 
in all major advanced economies, although prospects 
for inflation and economic slack under the baseline 

will	call	 for	gradual	normalization	at	different	times.	
The pace and composition of fiscal adjustment should 
be attuned to support both the recovery and long-term 
growth.

industry Structure and Development

The Material Handling Equipment industry has set 
up a large capacity for producing the equipment. It 
is well backed by vendors and is classified in four 
different sectors namely Cranes, Conveying and 
General Equipment which includes specialist bulk 
material handling equipment such as stackers and 
reclaimers, pneumatic and ash handling equipment, 
specialized	 conveyers,	 wagon	 tipplers,	 open	 cast	
conveying systems and fork lift trucks. This equipment 
manufacturing industry is well-developed in all 
aspects and geared to meet the demands of thermal 
power stations. Each different type of equipment 
in turn has different variety of specifications and 
therefore the whole universe of MHE is quite big. 

The bulk material handling products & technologies 
market has been segmented based types of bulk 
material handling equipment and end user application 
sectors and cross sectional analysis of the market. 
Growing demand for bulk material handling products 
& technologies in the mining and chemical sectors 
globally has fuelled the growth of bulk material 
handling products & technologies market. The 
industrial infrastructure and construction sector of 
countries such as China, India and Japan is in the 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

7.5	KM,	1500	MTPH,	Pipe	Conveyor	at	Manikgarh	Cement,	Unit-II,	Gadchandur,	Maharashtra	for	conveying	Lime	Stones
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developing stage and high demand for bulk material 
handling equipment has been found in this sector. 
Modernized,	 automated	 machineries	 for	 handling	
bulk materials are largely being used in the chemical 
industry	 to	 carefully	 handle	 the	 hazardous	 chemical	
wastes. Furthermore the need of assembly line in 
the manufacturing sector is also driving the bulk 
material handling products and technologies market. 
Assembly line requires the aid of conveyer system 
to meet the production capacity. Considering these 
factors demand of bulk material handling products & 
technologies is estimated to rise during the forecast 
period.

Opportunities and threats

The Material Handling Equipment (MHE) industry 
has a wide array of products on offer to the industry 
depending on the needs of the particular industry. As 
the name suggests this sector deals with equipments 
that relate to the movement, storage, control 
and protection of materials, goods and products 
throughout the process of manufacturing, distribution, 
consumption and disposal. Material handling sector 
is a critical intermediary in the economy of a country 
today. MHE may not directly contribute towards 
production of goods but it brings about efficiency 
in handling, transport and storage of goods. In fact, 
the MHE industry practically complements the 
manufacturing industry by ensuring smooth and 
efficient distribution of goods. Thus it is a vital aspect 
and hence the role of MHE in any set-up cannot be 
overlooked. Broadly, MHE can be classified as catering 
to	two	different	needs	of	material	handling	–	Unit	load	
handling and Bulk load handling.

India has a few key factors in its favors that will 
ensure the continuing growth of the material handling 
sector. Growing demand for bulk material handling 
products & technologies in the mining and chemical 
sectors globally has fuelled the growth of bulk 
material handling products & technologies market. 
In addition to this, the resumption of a steady inflow 
of investments from foreign multinationals, increase 
in domestic spending on infrastructure construction 
and power projects, robust domestic growth rates, 
strong internal fundamentals and a healthy banking 
system make India an extremely attractive destination 
for companies that are facing shrinking sales in other 
economies. Consequently, India is emerging as one of 
the best global investment options. 

And as long as industrial investments continue to be 
made, the demand for capital goods such as material 
handling systems will grow. Hence, contrary to popular 
perception, the global slowdown will be good for India. 
The general trend in the MHE industry is towards 
increasing automation, enhancing productivity and 
maximizing	 safety.	 A	 lot	 of	 innovations	 are	 also	

taking place to develop equipment specifically to 
one sub-sector of a particular industry and in turn 
provide	a	highly	customized	solution	for	a	very	niche	
requirement. 

The single most likely threat is the risk associated 
with a possible bumpy exit from the quantitative 
easing	programme	by	the	U.S	Federal	Reserve	(Fed).	
As already seen somewhat during last year, efforts by 
the Fed to pull out of quantitative easing programmes 
could lead to a surge in long term interest rates in 
developed and developing countries. Tapering could 
also lead to a sell-off in global equity markets, a sharp 
decline of capital inflows to emerging economies and 
a spike in the risk premium for external financing in 
emerging economies. These first-round shocks in 
international financial markets could transmit quickly 
to developed and developing economies.

Financial Performances

During the year ended on 31st March, 2015, the 
Company has achieved turnover of `52,014.24 Lacs 
as against the turnover of `50,242.68 Lacs during the 
previous year. The increase in turnover is because of 
the continuous efforts of the Company in this slow 
down in Indian economy by implementing various 
methods for reducing the cost to the Company like 
implementing the 5S, TPM etc. For the year ended on 
31st March, 2015, the Company earned Profit before 
Tax of `328.19 Lacs as against `349.96 Lacs during the 
previous year. The Company holds total unexecuted 
orders more than `1,15,000 lacs as on 31st March, 
2015. This will help us to continue to have sustainable 
growth in coming years.

Outlook

The global economy is still struggling to gain 
momentum as many high-income countries continue 
to grapple with legacies of the global financial crisis 
and emerging economies are less dynamic than in the 
past. Overall, global growth is expected to rise in 2015 
by 3.0 percent, and to be sustained at 3.2-3.3 percent 
in 2016.

The	US	 economy	 is	 expected	 to	 improve	 in	 2015-16,	
with GDP projected to expand by 2.8 and 3.1 per cent, 
respectively.

As per analysts, the Material Handling Equipment 
market in India will grow at a CAGR of 15 percent 
over the period 2015 to 2017. One of the key factors 
contributing to this market growth is the increased 
industrialization	 across	 the	 states	 in	 India.	 The	
Material Handling Equipment market in India has 
also been witnessing the incorporation of electronic 
intelligence. However, the lack of restrictions on 
imports of used equipment could pose a challenge to 
the growth of this market.
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The fiscal drag on growth is expected to remain, but 
with much milder intensity than in previous years. 

To put in a nutshell, the growth of the Indian economy 
is expected to improve in 2015-16. But the recovery 
will be mild and gradual.

Risk and Concerns

The risks for the economy are mainly associated 
with	 the	 possibility	 of	 sizeable	 volatility	 in	 financial	
markets	in	response	to	the	normalization	of	monetary	
policy, leading to adverse effects on the real economy. 

The Indian economy is facing a number of significant 
downside risks in the year ahead. The macro-
economic imbalances remain a very big concern to 
global investors. A key concern is a large current 
account deficit. Although India has taken some steps 
to try to narrow that, the fundamentals of its current 
account position reflect a chronic deficit which will 
take many years to address. Another big concern 
for global investors is the large fiscal deficit. These 
two deficit problems that India faces are going to be 
very hard to tackle, and it’s certainly hard to see how 
anything will change significantly over the next 12 
months with these risks.

The biggest challenge of all will be to establish a 
downward path for inflation. India does have chronic 
inflationary problems; there are structural problems 
in	economy	that	are	driving	inflation.	Unless	inflation	
can be brought under control, monetary policy will not 
be able to be eased and the economy cannot rebound.

internal Control System

Internal Controls are continuously evaluated by the 
Internal Auditors and Management. Findings from 
internal audits are reviewed by the Management 
and corrective actions and controls have been put in 
place wherever necessary. Scope of work of Internal 
Auditors covers review of controls on accounting, 
statutory and other compliances and operational 
areas in addition to reviews relating to efficiency and 
economy in operations. During the year, there is no 
material weakness in the design or operations were 
observed. 

Development in Human Resources/industrial front 

It has been the tradition of the Company to maintain 
excellent industrial relations at all levels. This has 
ensured a very healthy level of enthusiasm within 
the employees. This has enabled the Company to 
maintain its growth despite competition and economic 
slowdown.

Cautionary note

The statements forming part of this Report may contain 
certain forward looking remarks within the meaning 
of applicable laws and regulations. The actual results, 
performances or achievements of the Company 
depend on many factors which may cause material 
deviation from any future results, performances or 
achievements.

Significant factors which could make a difference 
to the Company’s operations include domestic 
and international economic conditions, changes 
in Government regulations, tax regime and other 
statutes.

The Company assumes no responsibility to 
publicly amend, modify or revise any forward-
looking statements on the basis of any subsequent 
developments, information or events.
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Preamble 
Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, the Board of Directors of the 
Company shall constitute the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 
The Policy as formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable 
rules thereto and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement (though not applicable to Company but considered for the good 
governance of the Company) goes as under. And the same is, hereby, put forward for your approval.

Introduction
In accordance with terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, (same amended 
from time to time), this policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), Senior 
Management and other employees of the Company has been formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee of the Company and approved by the Board of Directors vide its resolution dated February 3, 2015. This 
policy shall act as a guideline for determining, inter-alia, qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 
Director, matters relating to the remuneration, appointment, removal and evaluation of performance of the Directors, 
Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and other employees. The key features of this Company’s policy 
shall be included in the Directors’ Report.

Definitions
In this Policy unless the context otherwise requires: 
(1) “Act” means Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder.
(2) “Company” means “Elecon EPC Projects Limited”.
(3) “Board of Directors” or “Board”, in relation to the Company, means the collective body of the directors of the 

Company.
(4) “Independent Director” means a director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.
(5) “Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) means
 i) Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager,
 ii) Company Secretary,
 iii) Whole-time Director,
 iv) Chief Financial Officer and
 v) Such other officer as may be prescribed.
(6) “Committee” means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as constituted or reconstituted 

by the Board in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.
(7) “Policy” means, “Nomination and Remuneration Policy.”
(8) “Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered by 

him/her and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-Tax Act, 1961.
(9) “Senior Management” means personnel of the Company who are members of its core management team 

excluding Board of Directors. This would include all members of management one level below the executive 
directors, including all the functional heads.

(10) “Ministry” means the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.
(11) “Regulations” refers to and comprise of the Companies Act, 2013, the Companies (Meeting of Board and its 

Powers) Rules, 2014, the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial personnel) Rules, 2014, the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, Listing Agreement and such other rules and provisions 
as applicable to the matters dealt in by this Policy.

(12) “Employees’ Stock Option” means the option given to the directors, officers or employees of a company or 
of its holding company or subsidiary company or companies, if any, which gives such directors, officers or 
employees, the benefit or right to purchase, or to subscribe for, the shares of the company at a future date at 
a pre-determined price.

Objective
The policy is framed to ensure that a balanced fit is maintained between the level and composition of remuneration 
paid to the directors, key managerial personnel and senior management which is reasonable and sufficient enough 
to attract, retain and motivate them.

ANNEXURE - A TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Nomination, Remuneration and Evaluation Policy
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Membership / Composition
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall consist of a minimum 3 non-executive directors, majority of 
them being independent.
Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report.
CHAIRMAN 
a) Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Director. 
b) Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee but shall not be a Chairman of 

the Committee. 
c) In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the Committee present at the meeting shall choose one 

amongst them to act as Chairman. 
d) Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting could be present at the Annual General 

Meeting or may nominate some other member to answer the shareholders’ queries.

QUORUM 
Minimum two (2) members shall constitute a quorum for the Committee meeting.  

COMMITTEE MEMBERS’ INTERESTS 
a) A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own remuneration is discussed at a 

meeting or when his or her performance is being evaluated. 
b) The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the meetings of the 

Committee. 

VOTING
a) Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings shall be decided by a majority of votes of Members 

present and voting and any such decision shall for all purposes be deemed a decision of the Committee. 
b) In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote. 

TERM
Term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of Directors.

Applicability
This Policy is applicable to: 
1. Directors viz. Executive, Non-executive and Independent 
2. Key Managerial Personnel 
3. Senior Management Personnel 
4. Other Employees of the Company 

Effective Date
This policy shall be operational with immediate effect after its adoption and approval by the Board of Directors at 
its meeting held on 3rd February, 2015.

Role / Duties
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible for:  
 reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board 

at least annually and making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the 
Company’s corporate strategy, with the objective to diversify the Board; 

 identifying individuals suitably qualified to be appointed as the KMPs or in the senior management of the 
Company; 

 recommending to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorship; 
 making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration payable to the Directors/ KMPs/Senior Officials 

so appointed/reappointed; 
 assessing the independence of independent directors; 
 such other key issues/matters as may be referred by the Board or as may be necessary in view of the Listing 

Agreement and provision of the Companies Act 2013 and Rules thereunder. 
 to make recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the continuation in office of any 

Director at any time including the suspension or termination of service of an Executive Director as an employee 
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of the Company subject to the provision of the law and their service contract; 
 to ensure that level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient, relationship of remuneration 

to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; 
 to devise a policy on Board diversity; 
 to develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan;

EVALUATION
The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel 
at regular interval (yearly).
The following criteria may assist in determining how effective the performances of the Directors/KMPs/Senior 
officials have been:
 Leadership & stewardship abilities 
 contributing to clearly define corporate objectives & plans 
 Communication of expectations & concerns clearly with subordinates 
 obtain adequate, relevant & timely information from external sources. 
 review & approval achievement of strategic and operational plans, objectives, budgets 
 regular monitoring of corporate results against projections 
 identify, monitor & mitigate significant corporate risks 
 assess policies, structures & procedures 
 direct, monitor & evaluate KMPs, senior officials 
 review management’s succession plan 
 effective meetings 
 assuring appropriate board size, composition, independence, structure 
 clearly defining roles & monitoring activities of committees 
 review of corporation’s ethical conduct 

Evaluation on the aforesaid parameters will be conducted by the Independent Directors for each of the Executive/
Non-Independent Directors in a separate meeting of the Independent Directors. 

The Executive Director/Non-Independent Directors along with the Independent Directors will evaluate/assess each 
of the Independent Directors on the aforesaid parameters. Only the Independent Director being evaluated will not 
participate in the said evaluation discussion.

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS/KMPS/SENIOR OFFICIALS 
 Enhancing the competencies of the Board and attracting as well as retaining talented employees for role of 

KMP/a level below KMP are the basis for the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to select a candidate 
for appointment to the Board. When recommending a candidate for appointment, the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee has regard to:  

	 •	 assessing	 the	appointee	against	a	 range	of	 criteria	which	 includes	but	not	be	 limited	 to	qualifications,	
skills, regional and industry experience, background and other qualities required to operate successfully 
in the position, with due regard for the benefits from diversifying the Board; 

	 •	 the	extent	 to	which	 the	appointee	 is	 likely	 to	contribute	 to	 the	overall	effectiveness	of	 the	Board,	work	
constructively with the existing directors and enhance the efficiencies of the Company; 

	 •	 the	skills	and	experience	that	the	appointee	brings	to	the	role	of	KMP/Senior	Official	and	how	an	appointee	
will enhance the skill sets and experience of the Board as a whole; 

	 •	 the	nature	of	existing	positions	held	by	the	appointee	including	directorships	or	other	relationships	and	
the impact they may have on the appointee’s ability to exercise independent judgment; 

 Personal specifications for Directors 
 1. Qualification 
	 	 •	 Degree	holder	in	relevant	disciplines	(e.g.	management,	accountancy,	legal);	or	
	 	 •	 Recognised	specialist	

 2. Experience 
	 	 •	 Experience	of	management	in	a	diverse	organisation	
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	 	 •	 Experience	 in	 accounting	 and	finance,	 administration,	 corporate	 and	 strategic	 planning	 or	 fund	
management 

	 	 •	 Demonstrable	ability	to	work	effectively	with	a	Board	of	Directors
 3. Skills 
	 	 •	 Excellent	interpersonal,	communication	and	representational	skills	
	 	 •	 Demonstrable	leadership	skills	
	 	 •	 Extensive	team	building	and	management	skills	
	 	 •	 Strong	influencing	and	negotiating	skills	
	 	 •	 Having	continuous	professional	development	to	refresh	knowledge	and	skills	

 4. Abilities and Attributes 
	 	 •	 Commitment	to	high	standards	of	ethics,	personal	integrity	and	probity	
	 	 •	 Commitment	to	the	promotion	of	equal	opportunities,	community	cohesion	and	health	and	safety	in	

the workplace
  5. Political inclinations and opinions.
 6. Other Specifications as under: 
	 	 •	 Degree	holder	in	relevant	disciplines;	
	 	 •	 Experience	of	management	in	a	diverse	organization;	
	 	 •	 Excellent	interpersonal,	communication	and	representational	skills;	
	 	 •	 Demonstrable	leadership	skills;	
	 	 •	 Commitment	to	high	standards	of	ethics,	personal	integrity	and	probity;	
	 	 •	 Commitment	to	the	promotion	of	equal	opportunities,	community	cohesion	and	health	and	safety	in	

the workplace; 
	 	 •	 Having	continuous	professional	development	to	refresh	knowledge	and	skills.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 
The guiding principle is that the level and composition of remuneration shall be reasonable and sufficient to attract, 
retain and motivate Directors, Key Management Personnel and other senior officials. The Directors, Key Management 
Personnel and other senior official’s salary shall be based & determined on the individual person’s responsibilities 
and performance and in accordance with the limits as prescribed statutorily, if any. 
The Nominations & Remuneration Committee determines individual remuneration packages for Directors, KMPs and 
Senior Officials of the Company taking into account factors it deems relevant, including but not limited to market, 
business performance and practices in comparable companies, having due regard to financial and commercial 
health of the Company as well as prevailing laws and government/other guidelines. The Committee consults with the 
Chairman of the Board as it deems appropriate. Remuneration of the Chairman is recommended by the Committee 
to the Board of the Company. 

(i) Remuneration: 
 a) Base Compensation (Fixed Salaries) 
	 	 Must	be	 competitive	 and	 reflective	of	 the	 individual’s	 role,	 responsibility	 and	experience	 in	 relation	 to	

performance of day-to-day activities, usually reviewed on an annual basis; (includes salary, allowances 
and other statutory/non-statutory benefits which are normal part of remuneration package in line with 
market practices). 

 b) Variable Salary
  The RNC may in its discretion structure any portion of remuneration to link rewards to corporate and 

individual performance, fulfilment of specified improvement targets or the attainment of certain financial 
or other objectives set by the Board. The amount payable is determined by the Committee, based on 
performance against pre-determined financial and non-financial metrics. 

(ii) Statutory Requirements: 
	 	 •	 Section	197(5)	provides	for	remuneration	by	way	of	a	fee	to	a	director	for	attending	meetings	of	the	

Board of Directors and Committee meetings or for any other purpose as may be decided by the 
Board. 

	 	 •	 Section	197(1)	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013	provides	for	the	total	managerial	remuneration	payable	by	
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the Company to its directors, including managing director and whole time director, and its manager 
in respect of any financial year shall not exceed eleven percent of the net profits of the Company 
computed in the manner laid down in Section 198 in the manner as prescribed under the Act. 

	 	 •	 The	Company	with	 the	approval	 of	 the	Shareholders	and	Central	Government	may	authorise	 the	
payment of remuneration exceeding eleven percent of the net profits of the company, subject to the 
provisions of Schedule V. 

	 	 •	 The	Company	may	with	the	approval	of	the	shareholders	authorise	the	payment	of	remuneration	upto	
five percent of the net profits of the Company to its anyone Managing Director/Whole Time Director/
Manager and ten percent in case of more than one such official. 

	 	 •	 The	Company	may	pay	remuneration	to	its	directors,	other	than	Managing	Director	and	Whole	Time	
Director upto one percent of the net profits of the Company, if there is a managing director or whole 
time director or manager and three percent of the net profits in any other case. 

	 	 •	 The	net	profits	for	the	purpose	of	the	above	remuneration	shall	be	computed	in	the	manner	referred	
to in Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.

 The Independent Directors shall not be entitled to any stock option and may receive remuneration by way of fee 
for attending meetings of the Board or Committee thereof or for any other purpose as may be decided by the 
Board and profit related commission as may be approved by the members. The sitting fee to the Independent 
Directors shall not be less than the sitting fee payable to other directors. 

 The remuneration payable to the Directors shall be as per the Company’s policy and shall be valued as per the 
Income Tax Rules. 

 The remuneration payable to the Key Managerial Personnel and the Senior Management shall be as may 
be decided by the Board having regard to their experience, leadership abilities, initiative taking abilities and 
knowledge base.

REMOVAL
The Committee may recommend, to the Board removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel due 
to following reasons:
 Any disqualification
 Misconduct
 Breach of Contract or trust
	 Conflict	in	interest
Such recommendation to the Board shall be with reasons recorded in writing.

OTHER GENERAL MATTERS
The Committee shall ensure that –
1. The policy is in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force);
2. The composition of the Board is in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder, 

and Listing Agreement as amended from time to time;
3. The Board of the Company may consciously consist of directors from expertise field as may be considered fit 

by the Committee which is essential and beneficial for the growth of the Company;
4. The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors 

of the quality required to run the company successfully;
5. Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and
6. Remuneration to directors, KMPs and senior management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay 

reflecting	short	and	long-term	performance	objectives	appropriate	to	the	working	of	the	company	and	its	goals;
7. The policy is disclosed in the Boards’ Report.
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1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programmes proposed to be undertaken 
and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programmes.

 CSR Policy is stated herein below:
 Weblink: http://www.eleconepc.com/corporate-governance

2. Composition of the CSR Committee:
 Shri Chirayu Amin   - Chairman
 Shri Pradip M. Patel    - Member
 Shri Prashant C. Amin  - Member

3. Average net profit of the Company for last three Financial Years:
 Average net profit: ` 1574.95 lacs

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above):
 The Company was required to spend ` 31.50 lacs towards CSR.

5. Details of CSR spend for the financial year:
 a.  Total amount spent for the financial year: ` 2.05 lacs
 b. Amount unspent, if any: ` 29.45 Lacs
 c. Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

* Details of implementing agencies:- 1) I. B. Patel Charitable Trust, 3) Charutar Vidya Mandal

6. Reasons for not spending the balance amount towards CSR activities for the Financial Year 2014-15:
	 	 During	the	financial	year,	as	the	Company	was	facing	severe	cash	flow	issues	and	was	not	in	a	position	to	spend	cash	on	

CSR activities as the funds were required to manage the working capital requirement of the operations, the Company did 
not spend balance CSR amount for the year.

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance 
with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

  CSR Policy has been implemented and the CSR Committee monitors the implementation of the CSR project and activities 
with our CSR objectives.

ANNEXURE - B TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

 Sr.  Projects / Activities Sector Locations - Amt. Outlay  Amt. spent on Cumulative Amount spent:
 No.    Districts (Budget) – projects or Expenditure Direct or
     (State) Project or  programme Upto reporting through
      Programme wise  period implementing
         agency*
      ` in Lacs ` in Lacs  ` in Lacs ` in Lacs

 1. Educational, Scholarship  Educational Dist.: Anand - 1.00 1.00 1.00 
  providing educational aid  /Literacy  State: Gujarat     
  to needy students and  Sector      
  Scholarship to       
  meritorious students    

 2. Upliftment / Charity Dist.: Anand - 0.05 0.05 0.05
  Empowerment of Women   State: Gujarat    Direct 
     

 3. Social Welfare  Charity Dist.: Anand - 1.00 1.00 1.00
     State: Gujarat

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

P. M. Patel  Chirayu Amin 
Chairman Chairman of the
   CSR Committee
DIN : 00012138 DIN : 00242549

Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar
Date : 30-04-2015
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(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and 
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

This Form pertains to the disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related 
parties referred to in Sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions 

under third proviso thereto.

1.  Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: 
 There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended 31st March, 2015, which were 

not at arm’s length basis.

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis:

 The details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis for the year ended 31st March, 
2015 are as follows:

 Name(s) of the related party  Nature of  Duration of Salient terms contracts Amount
  relationship contracts arrangements/ transactions ` In lacs
    including the value, if any (*)

Nature of Contracts -

Purchase of Goods :    
     Elecon Engineering Company Ltd. Holding Company Ongoing Based on Related Party 3449.19
     Transactions Policy
 Power Build Private Limited  Related Party# Ongoing Based on Related Party 68.43
     Transactions Policy
 Elecon Hydraulics Pvt. Ltd. Related Party# Ongoing Based on Related Party 2.37
     Transactions Policy
 Elecon Peripherals Ltd. Associate Co. of  Ongoing Based on Related Party  216.10
   Holding Company  Transactions Policy 
 WRC Engineering Co. Pvt. Ltd. Related Party# Ongoing Based on Related Party 33.10
     Transactions Policy 
 Packme Industries Pvt. Ltd. Related Party# Ongoing Based on Related Party 52.32
     Transactions Policy  

      3,821.51
Sales of Goods:    

     Elecon Engineering Company Ltd. Holding Company Ongoing Based on Related Party  223.00
     Transactions Policy 

 Power Build Private Limited  Related Party# Ongoing Based on Related Party 10.35
     Transactions Policy

 Eimco Elecon (India) Ltd. Joint Venture Co. Ongoing Based on Related Party 10.16
   of Holding  Transactions Policy
   Company 

 Elecon Hydraulics Pvt. Ltd. Related Party# Ongoing Based on Related Party 0.41
     Transactions Policy

 Elecon Peripherals Ltd. Associate Co. of  Ongoing Based on Related Party  2.21
   Holding Company  Transactions Policy

 Elecon Middle East FZCO Subsidiary of  Ongoing Based on Related Party 500.01
   the Holding Co.  Transactions Policy

 Elecon Singapore PTE Ltd. Subsidiary of Ongoing Based on Related Party 190.31
   the Holding Co.  Transactions Policy
      936.45

ANNEXURE - C TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FORM NO. AOC-2 RELATED PARTY TRANSATIONS DURING THE YEAR 2014-15
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 Name(s) of the related party  Nature of  Duration of Salient terms contracts Amount
  relationship contracts arrangements/ transactions ` In lacs
    including the value, if any (*)

Rent Paid:    
     Elecon Engineering Company Ltd. Holding Company Ongoing Based on Related Party 583.28
     Transactions Policy  
Rent Received:    
 Eimco Elecon (India) Ltd. Joint Venture Co. Ongoing Based on Related Party 16.81
   of Holding  Transactions Policy
   Company.
Sale of Assets:    
 Elecon Engineering Company Ltd. Holding Company Ongoing Based on Related Party 748.43
     Transactions Policy
 Elecon Peripherals Ltd. Associate Co. of Ongoing Based on Related Party 0.93
   Holding Company  Transactions Policy
      749.36
Amount Paid for Job Work:    
 Elecon Engineering Company Ltd. Holding Company Ongoing Based on Related Party 42.74
     Transactions Policy
 Eimco Elecon (India) Ltd. Joint Venture Co.  Ongoing Based on Related Party 3.76
   of Holding   Transactions Policy
   Company
 Elecon Peripherals Ltd. Associate Co. of Ongoing Based on Related Party 2.42 
   Holding Company  Transactions Policy
 Elecon Middle East FZCO Subsidiary of Ongoing Based on Related Party 12.44
   the Holding Co.  Transactions Policy
 Elecon Singapore PTE Ltd. Subsidiary of Ongoing Based on Related Party  104.36
   the Holding Co.  Transactions Policy 
      165.72
Amount Received for Job Work:    
 Power Build Private Limited  Related Party# Ongoing Based on Related Party 
     Transactions Policy 0.20
 Eimco Elecon (India) Ltd. Joint Venture Co.  Ongoing Based on Related Party 0.51
   of Holding   Transactions Policy
   Company
 Elecon Peripherals Ltd. Associate Co. of  Ongoing Based on Related Party  0.31
   Holding Company  Transactions Policy 
      1.02
Expenses Charged by Other Companies:    
 Elecon Engineering Company Ltd. Holding Company Ongoing Based on Related Party 214.07
     Transactions Policy
 Eimco Elecon (India) Ltd. Joint Venture Co.  Ongoing Based on Related Party  86.20
   of Holding   Transactions Policy
   Company 
      300.27
Expenses Charged to Other Companies:    
 Elecon Engineering Company Ltd. Holding Company Ongoing Based on Related Party 13.99
     Transactions Policy
 Eimco Elecon (India) Ltd. Joint Venture Co. Ongoing Based on Related Party 
   of Holding  Transactions Policy 2.06
   Company   
      16.05

(*)  Appropriate approvals have been taken for Related Party Transactions advances paid have been adjusted against billing         
      wherever applicable.
#   Related Party as per Section 2(76)(iv) of the Companies Act, 2013. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

P. M. Patel
Chairman 
DIN : 00012138

Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar
Date : 30-04-2015
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To 
The Members,
ELECON EPC PROJECTS LIMITED

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Elecon EPC Projects Limited (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted 
in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 
expressing my opinion thereon.
Based on my verification of the Elecon EPC Projects Limited’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 
and other records maintained by the company and  also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company 
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2015 complied with the statutory provisions 
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Elecon 
EPC Projects Limited. (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st March 2015 according to the provisions of:
i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
ii.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; (Not Applicable to the 

Company)
iii.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; (Not Applicable to the Company)
iv.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 

Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (Not Applicable to the 
Company during the Audit Period)

v.  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’):- (Not Applicable to the Company)

 a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011;

 b.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
 c.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2009;
 d.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 

Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 ;
 e.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
 f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 

1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
 g.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and
 h.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

vi.  Laws specifically applicable to the industry to which the company belongs, as identified by the management, that 
is to say:

 There is no law specifically applicable to the company except the general laws applicable to the Manufacturing 
company.

 I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
 i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
 ii. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges; (Not Applicable to the Company)
 During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 

Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

ANNEXURE - D TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FORM NO. MR-3  SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31st March, 2015

Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
Personnel) Rules, 2014
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I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during 
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications 
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the 
minutes.
I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

CS Ashwin Shah
Place : Ahmedabad  Company Secretary
Date   : 29-04-2015   C. P. No. 1640

Note : This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘ANNEXURE A’ and forms an integral 
part of this report.

‘ANNEXURE A’ to the Secretarial Audit Report

To,
The Members,
Elecon EPC Projects Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.
1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is 

to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.
2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 

the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct	facts	are	reflected	in	secretarial	records.	We	believe	that	the	processes	and	practices,	we	followed	provide	
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy 
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

    CS Ashwin Shah
Place  : Ahmedabad  Company Secretary
Date   : 29-04-2015   C. P. No. 1640
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Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo stipulated 
under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule, 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is 
detailed as under:-

1. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
 - Energy conservation by adopting new technology with more focus on continuous improvement and through 

improved maintenance practices.
 - Providing natural lighting through more and more translucent sheet to stop day time use of Electricity in 

shop	floor	area.
 - The Power saving by use of LED lights in new offices, training centre etc.
 - In continuation to save the energy, continue to install new High Energy Efficient motors for Hoist applications 

of EOT Cranes.
 - Installing the AC variable frequency drives in old cranes hoist application.
 - Reduce the use of Compressor air; Company has introduced electrically operated tools to save the electricity.
 - Reduced the use of natural resources like Oil, Water, Energy etc by introducing Total Productive Maintenance 

(TPM) practice.  
 - Retrofitting of high power consumption lamps like Metal Halide Lamp, HPMV Lamps with LED type lamps. 

(Less energy more lumens).
 - Start to use Inverter type Air Conditioner unit to achieve the Goal of energy conservation.

2. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 
 (I)  Research and Development
  (a) Since inception of the Company and in pursuit of R & D endeavors, the Company is regularly incurring 

expenditure on R & D on the following activities.
    -   Drawing, Design & Development of new products;
   -   Continuous improvement of existing products for enhanced durability and performance;
   -  Testing and Adaption of new materials;
   -  New processes and Up gradation of existing processes;
   -  Product engineering for enhanced product quality and reliability;
   -  Reduction of rejections and warranty returns;
   -  Improving New Product Development (NPD) lead time;
   -  Environment compliance by products and processes;
   -  Testing and validation of new products;

  (b) Benefits derived as a result of R & D: 
    It has resulted in the improvement of quality of the products and reduced operation cost. Up gradation 

of products to the new requirements has been possible because of R & D done in the Company since 
inception on a continuous basis & Customers’ satisfaction and new business opportunities because 
of cost, quality and latest technology.

  (c) Future plan of action:
    Future R & D efforts will continue along similar lines, as at present, but with more focus, thrust and 

endeavors. 

  (d) Expenditure on R & D:
    In pursuit of R & D endeavors, the Company is continuously incurring R & D expenditure both on Capital 

and	Revenue,	which	has	not	been	separately	reflected	but	is	being	shown	as	part	of	regular	heads	of	
accounts in Fixed Assets and in Statement of Profit and Loss respectively.

 (II)  Technology Absorption, Adaptation and innovation:
  New range of equipment:
	 	 	 •	 Stacker	/	Reclaimer		of		“C”	Frame	design	of	4200/4600	TPH	Stacking	capacity	&	2500/3500	TPH	

ANNEXURE – E  TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Reclaiming capacity  and 51 Mt. Boom Reach. The technology was outsourced from EMS – Tech 
Inc., Canada

	 	 	 •	 Developed	a	pile	reclaimer	to	reclaim	bulk	material	like	coal,	iron	ore	etc.	from	pile	to	feed	to	
conveyor. We developed three models ranging from 500 TPH to 1500 TPH

	 	 	 •	 High	speed	rollers	suitable	for	8.15	m/s	conveyor	speed,	less	than	0.6	mm	TIR	and	less	than	200	
gms. low drag force.

	 	 	 •	 Pipe	conveyor	of	7.5	km	length	&	1500	TPH	capacity,	one	of	the	longest	conveyors	in	the	world.
	 	 	 •	 Transfer	car	with	ejector	system	for	Wagon	Transfer.

  Capacity Increase in existing equipment:
	 	 	 •	 Stacker-Reclaimer	with	2400	TPH	stacking	&	2400	TPH	reclaiming	and	60	m	boom	reach.
	 	 	 •	 1100	TPH	Hammer	crusher	for	(-)	5	mm	product	size	of	coal.

  Technology adaption: 
	 	 	 •	 Wine	glass	type	roller	support	frame	&	fabricated	pipe	frames	for	belt	conveyors.
	 	 	 •	 Up-gradation	of	existing	plant	chutes	for	optimized	flow	with	the	help	of	Chute	Analysis	software.

 (III)  Foreign Exchange Earnings and Out go:

  Foreign Exchange Earnings:  ` 1,754.81 lacs as against last year of ` 799.74 lacs.
  Foreign Exchange Out Go:  ` 1,996.50 lacs as against last year of ` 1,393.18 lacs.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

P. M. Patel
Chairman 
DIN : 00012138

Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar
Date : 30-04-2015
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ANNEXURE - F TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN - Form No. MGT – 9

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014]

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
 All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

  Sr. No. Name and Description of  NIC Code of the Product/ % to total turnover of the
  main products/services service Company

 1. Bulk Material Handling  2915 100
  Equipments 

 Sr. NAME AND ADDRESS CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % OF  APPLI-
 No. OF THE COMPANY   SUBSIDIARY/ SHARES CABLE
    ASSOCIATE  HELD SECTION

 1. Elecon Engineering Company Limited  L29259GJ1960PLC001082 Holding Company 99.86%* 2 (46)
  Anand-Sojitra Road,
  Vallabh Vidyanagar – 388 120. 

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

 i) CIN U29219GJ1991PLC015379
 ii) Registration Date 10th April, 1991
 iii) Name of the Company ELECON EPC PROJECTS LIMITED.
 iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company Company having Share Capital 
 v) Address of the Registered office and contact details C/o. Elecon Engineering Co. Ltd.,
   Anand-Sojitra Road, 
   Vallabh Vidyanagar – 388 120, Gujarat.
   Tel.: 02692-237016/230017,
   Fax.: 02692-227020
   Website : www.eleconepc.com

 vi) Whether listed company No
 vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and  Not Applicable
  Transfer Agent, if any

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
 i)  Category–wise Share Holding

 Category of  No. of Shares held at the beginning of No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change
 Shareholders the year   during
    the year

  Demat Physical  Total % of  Demat Physical  Total % of
      Total     Total 
      Shares     Shares

A. Promoters
(1) Indian 
  a)  Individual/ HUF  6661 6661 1.50% - 6661 6661 1.50% -
  b)  Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
  c)  State Govt(s)  - - - - - - - - -
  d)  Bodies Corp.   432523 432523 96.85%  432523 432523 96.85% 
  e)  Banks / FI  - - - - - - - - -
  f)  Any Other (Trust)  7425 7452 1.66%  7425 7425 1.66%

 Sub-total (A) (1):-   446609 446609 100.00  446609 446609 100.00

* includes % of Preference Shares held by the Holding Company.
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 Category of  No. of Shares held at the beginning of No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change
 Shareholders the year   during
    the year

  Demat Physical  Total % of  Demat Physical  Total % of
      Total     Total 
      Shares     Shares

(2)  Foreign 

  a)  NRIs - Individuals  - - - - - - - - -
  b)  Other – Individuals  - - - - - - - - -
  c)  Bodies Corp.  - - - - - - - - -
  d)  Banks / FI  - - - - - - - - -
  e)  Any Other.  - - - - - - - - -

 Sub-total (A) (2):-  - - - - - - - - -

Total shareholding of 
Promoter (A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2)  446609 446609 100.00  446609 446609 100.00 

B. Public Shareholding          

1. Institutions         
  a)  Mutual Funds  - - - - - - - - -
  b)  Banks / FI  - - - - - - - - -
  c)  Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
  d)  State Govt(s)  - - - - - - - - -
  e)  Venture Capital  - - - - - - - - -
   Funds  
  f) Insurance Companies  - - - - - - - - -
  g)  FIIs  - - - - - - - - -
  h)  Foreign Venture 
   Capital Funds 
   Others (specify)  - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (B)(1):-  - - - - - - - - -

2.  Non-Institutions  - - - - - - - - -
  a)  Bodies Corp.  - - - - - - - - -
   i)   Indian  - - - - - - - - -
   ii)  Overseas  - - - - - - - - -

  b)  Individuals  - - - - - - - - -
   i)   Individual  - - - - - - - - -
    shareholders
    holding nominal 
    share capital upto 
    ` 1 lakh  
   ii) Individual 
    shareholders 
    holding
    nominal share 
    capital in
    excess of `1 lakh  - - - - - - - - -

  c)  Others (specify)  - - - - - - - - - 

Sub-Total (B)(2):-  - - - - - - - - -

Total Public Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2) - - - - - - - - -

C.  Shares held by 
  Custodian for GDRs 
  & ADRs  - - - - - - - - -

 Grand Total (A+B+C)  - 446609 446609 100.00  446609 446609 100.00 -
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 (ii)  Shareholding of Promoters   

 Sr. Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning Shareholding at the end
 No. name of the year of the year

    No. of % of total % of  No. of % of total % of shares % change
    shares shares of  shares shares shares of pledged/ in share
     the  pledged/  the encumbe- holding
     company encumbe-  company red to total during 
      red to total   shares the year
      shares    

 1. Elecon Engineering Co. Ltd.  270110 60.48% - 270170 60.48% - -
  (EECL) 
 2. Shri Prayasvin B. Patel  10 0.002% - - - - -
  (Nominee of EECL) 
 3. Smt. Taruna P. Patel  10 0.002% - - - - -
  (Nominee of EECL) 
 4. Shri Prashant C. Amin  10 0.002% - - - - -
  (Nominee of EECL) 
 5. Shri Hemendra C. Shah  10 0.002% - - - - -
  (Nominee of EECL) 
 6. Shri Ravin R. Shah  10 0.002% - - - - -
  (Nominee of EECL)
 7. Shri Nilesh D. Shelat 
  (Nominee of EECL) 10 0.002% - - - - -
 8. Akaaish Mechatronics Ltd. 4252 0.95% - 4252 0.95% - -
 9. K. B. Investments Ptv. Ltd. 50651 11.34% - 50651 11.34% - -
 10. Bipra Investments &  45017 10.08% - 45017 10.08% - -
  Trusts Private Limited 
 11. Shantaben I. Patel Trust  7425 1.66% - 7425 1.66% - -
  C/o Minita Dalal 
 12. Elecon Information  20749 4.65% - 20749 4.65% - -
  Technology Limited 
 13. Devkishan Investments  5137 1.15% - 5137 1.15% - -
  Private Limited 
 14. Prayas Engineering Limited 3947 0.88% - 3947 0.88% - -
 15. Emtici Engineering Limited 29954 6.71% - 29954 6.71% - -
 16. Shri Prayasvin B. Patel 6275 1.41% - 6275 1.41% - -
 17. Smt. TarunaPrayasvin Patel 146 0.03% - 146 0.03% - -
 18. Jamko Consultants 
  Private Limited 80 0.02% - 80 0.02% - -
 19. Ms. Aishwarya P. Patel 
  J/h Smt. Taruna P. Patel 120 0.03% - 120 0.03% - -
 20. Ms. Aakanksha P. Patel 
  J/H Smt. Taruna P. Patel 120 0.03% - 120 0.03% - -
 21. Wizard Fincap Limited 1283 0.29% - 1283 0.29% - -
 22. Speciality Woodpack 
  Private Limited 1283 0.29% - 1283 0.29% - -

  Total 446609 100 % - 446609 100 % - -
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 iii)  Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

  Promoters’ Shareholding Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative shareholding 
   of the year during the year

   No. of shares % of total shares  No. of shares % of total shares
    of the Company  of the Company

 At the beginning of the year   No change during the year

 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 
 Promoters Share holding during the year 
 specifying the reasons for increase /   No change during the year
 decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / 
 bonus/ sweat equity etc):   

 At the End of the year   No change during the year

 iv.  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

   Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative shareholding 
   of the year during the year

 For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders No. of shares % of total shares  No. of shares % of total shares
    of the Company  of the Company

 At the beginning of the year 

 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 
 Promoters Share holding during the year 
 specifying the reasons for increase /   Not Applicable
 decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / 
 bonus/ sweat equity etc): 

 At the End of the year (or on the date of 
 separation, if separated during the year)

  At the beginning of the year  None of the Directors/ KMP hold shares in the Company

  Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
  holding during the year specifying the reasons  None of the Directors / KMP hold shares in the Company
  for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / 
  transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):

  At the End of the year  None of the Directors / KMP hold shares in the Company

 v)  Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

 Sr.  Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative shareholding during
 No.  of the year the year

  For Each of the Directors and KMP No. of % of total Shares  No. of Shares % of total Shares
   Shares of the Company  of the Company
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   Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
   excluding deposits Loans  Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

i)  Principal Amount 2,169,018,351.06 28,200,000.00 - 2,197,218,351.06 

ii)  Interest due but not paid -    -    -    -   

iii) Interest accrued but not due 5,699,305.00 - - 5,699,305.00

Total (i+ii+iii)  2,174,717,656.06 28,200,000.00 - 2,202,917,656.06

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

Addition - 75,000,000.00 - 75,000,000.00 

Reduction 534,893,815.71 - - 534,893,815.71 

Net Change (534,893,815.71) 75,000,000.00 - 609,893,815.71 

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i)  Principal Amount 1,634,124,535.35 103,200,000.00 - 1,737,324,535.35 

ii)  Interest due but not paid - - - -   

iii)  Interest accrued but not due 4,858,518.00 -  4,858,518.00 

Total (i+ii+iii) 1,638,983,053.35 103,200,000.00 - 1,742,183,053.35

V. INDEBTEDNESS - Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

 Sr. Particulars of Remuneration  Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount
 No.

1. Gross salary  ----  ----  ---- ---- 

 (a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1)  - - - - -
  of the Income-Tax Act, 1961  
 (b)  Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-Tax Act, 1961 - - - - -
 (c)  Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)  - - - - -
  Income-Tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Option - - - - -

3. Sweat Equity - - - - -
4. Commission
 -  as % of profit - - - - -
 -  others, specify…
5. Others, please specify  -  - -
  Total (A) - - - - -
  Ceiling as per the Act  - - - - -

VI.     REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

 A.  Remuneration to Managing Director, Wholetime Directors and/or Manager:
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 Sr. Particulars of Remuneration   Name of Directors Total
  No.      Amount 

 B.  Remuneration to Other Directors: (Amount in `)

 1. Independent Directors Shri Chirayu Amin  -- 
  Fee for attending board committee meetings 20,000  - 20,000
  Commission -  - -
  Others, please specify -  - -
  Total (1) -  - 20,000
 2. Other Non-Executive Directors Shri Pradip M. Patel  Shri Prashant C. Amin
   Fee for attending board committee meetings 1,60,000  1,60,000 3,20,000
  Commission -  - -
  Others, please specify -  - -
   Total (2) -  - 3,20,000
   Total (B)=(1+2) -  - 3,40,000
   Total Managerial Remuneration -  - 3,40,000

  Overall Ceiling as per the Act   3% of Net Profit  

 Sr. 
Particulars of Remuneration

  Key Managerial Personnel  
Total Amount

 No.  CEO Company CFO
    Secretary

1 Gross Salary   
 (a)  Salary as per provisions contained in  --- *656,078 --- 656,078
  Section 17(1) of the Income-Tax Act, 1961 
 (b)  Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-Tax Act, 1961 --- --- --- ---
 (c)  Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) 
  Income-Tax Act, 1961 --- --- --- --- 
2 Stock Option --- --- --- --- 

3 Sweat Equity --- --- --- --- 
4 Commission --- --- --- ---  
  -  as % of profit --- --- --- ---  
   others, specify… --- --- --- ---  
5 Others, please specify – Retirals --- *46,770 --- 46,770

  Total --- 702,847 --- 702,847

 C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/MANAGER/WTD

* Note:-  It includes the remuneration of the Company Secretary, who has resigned from the office as the Company Secretary 
(for the period from 1.04.2014 to 14.11.2014) and that of the Company Secretary of the Company, who has joined the 
same office (for the period from 15.11.2014 to 31.03.2015).

 Type Section of the  Brief Details of Penalty/ Authority Appeal made,
  Companies Act Description Punishment/  [RD / NCLT/ if any
    Compounding COURT] (give Details)
    fees imposed

A.  COMPANY
 Penalty

 Punishment    None 

 Compounding

B.  DIRECTORS

 Penalty

 Punishment    None

 Compounding

C.  OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

 Penalty

 Punishment    None

 Compounding

VII.   PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
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Information pursuant to Section 197 of th/e Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5, of The Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and forming part of this Directors’ Report for the financial Year ended on 
31st March, 2015.

(A) Name of employees employed for part of the year:

Name Age  Qualification Date of Designation Gross Experience Last 
   Joining  Remuneration  in years Employment
     (` in Lacs)

Shri Prayasvin Patel 57 Yrs. B. E. (Mech.) 15th May,  President 315.00 39 Business
  M.B.A.  2013 (Operation)   
  (U. S. A.)

ANNEXURE – G  TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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The Directors of the Company presents voluntarily the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the Financial Year ended 
on 31st March, 2015.

INTRODUCTION

Corporate Governance is an ethically driven business process which values aimed at enhancing an organization’s wealth generat-
ing capacity. In other words, Corporate Governance is the acceptance by Management of the inalienable rights of shareholders 
as the true owners of the corporation and of their own role as trustees on behalf of the shareholders. It deals with conducting 
the affairs of a Company such that there is fairness to all stakeholders and that its actions benefit all the stakeholders. It is 
integral to the very existence of a company and strengthens investor’s confidence by ensuring company’s commitment to higher 
growth and profits.

It is about commitment to values, about ethical business conduct and about making a distinction between personal and corpo-
rate funds in the management of a company. The aim of “Good Corporate Governance” is to ensure commitment of the Board 
in managing the company in a transparent manner for maximizing long-term value of the Company for its shareholders and all 
other partners. It integrates all the participants involved in a process, which is economic, and at the same time social.

(1) Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance:
 Pursuant to the practice of the Good Corporate Governance, your Company is committed to meet the aspirations of all our 

stakeholders and believes in adopting the best corporate practices for ethical conduct of business.

 Your Company continues to maintain its industry leadership, by pursuing excellence in everything it does including 
standards of business conduct. The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance emanates from the principles of ethical 
governance and is aimed at conducting of business in an efficient and transparent manner and in meeting its obligations 
to shareholders and other stakeholders. This objective is achieved by adopting corporate practices based on principles of 
transparency, accountability, fairness and integrity to create long term sustainable value for all its stakeholders.

(2)  Board of Directors:
 The Company is managed by a Board of Directors consisting of highly qualified and experienced professionals from different 

fields, which formulates strategies, policies and reviews its performance periodically. 
 None of the Directors on the Board is a Member of more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more than 5 Committees 

(as per Clause 49 (D) (ii) of Listing Agreement) across all the companies in which he is a Director. Necessary disclosures 
have been made by the Directors.

 Size and Composition of Board
 The present policy is to have an appropriate mix of non-executive and independent directors to maintain the independence 

of the Board in order to separate its functions of governance and management. The Board of Directors of the Company 
shall have an optimum combination of executive and non-executive directors with at least one woman director and not less 
than fifty percent of the Board comprising of non-executive directors.

 Composition of the Board as on 31st March, 2015:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

 Category No. of Directors

Non-Executive & Non Independent 2
Directors including the Chairman

Independent Non-Executive Director 2

 Total 4

 As required under Section 149(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati, has been 
appointed as an Independent Director - Woman on the Board.

(3) BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCEDURES
 (A) Scheduling and selection of Agenda items for Board Meetings
  i.   The meetings are being convened by giving appropriate advance notice after obtaining the approval of the Chairman 

of the Board. Detailed agenda, management reports and other explanatory statements are circulated in advance 
amongst the members for facilitating meaningful, informed and focused decisions. To address specific urgent need, 
meetings are also being called at shorter notice. The Board is also authorized to pass Resolution by circulation 
for all such matters, which are of utmost urgent nature.

  ii.  Where it is not practical to attach any document or the agenda is of confidential nature, the same is placed on 
the table with the approval of the Chairman of the Board. In special and exceptional circumstances, additional 
or supplemental item(s) on the agenda are permitted. Sensitive subject matters are discussed at the meeting 
without written materials being circulated.



Elecon EPC Projects Limited  | 24th Annual Report 2014 - 15 37

  iii.    The agenda papers are prepared by the officials concerned and submitted to the Chairman for his approval. Duly 
approved agenda papers are circulated amongst the Board Members by the Company Secretary.

  iv.   As per the convenience of the members of the Board, the Board Meetings are usually held at the Company’s 
registered office in Vallabh Vidyanagar, Dist. Anand. However, sometimes for the convenience of the members of 
the Board, it may be convened at the place(s) other than the Registered Office of the Company.

  v.     The members of the Board have complete access to all the information of the Company. The Board is also free to 
recommend inclusion of any matter in agenda for discussion. Senior Management Officials are called to provide 
additional inputs to the items discussed by the Board as and when necessary.

 (B) Recording minutes of proceedings at the Board Meeting:
  A minute of the proceedings of each Board Meeting is recorded and the same is read in the next Board Meeting. The 

minutes of the proceedings of the meetings are entered in the Minutes Books and the same are signed by the Chairman 
as prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder.

 (C)  Compliance:
  The Company Secretary while preparing the agenda notes is responsible for and is required to ensure adherence to all 

the applicable provisions of law, rules, regulations, guidelines etc.

 BOARD MEETINGS

 During the financial year 2014-15, the Board Meetings were held on 22.05.2014, 4.08.2014, 4.11.2014, 3.02.2015 and the gap 
between two Board meetings was well within the limit as prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013.

 The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board Meetings held during the year and at the 
last Annual General Meeting, as also the number of Directorship and Committee positions, as held by them in other Public 
Limited Companies, as on 31st March, 2015 are given below:

 Name of  Nature of  No. of Board  No. of Attendance No. of  No. of Committee
 Directors Directorship Meetings held  Board at AGM other Chairmanship/
   during the  Meetings  Director- Membership
   tenure of Attended  ship Chairman-  Member-
   Directorship    ship ship

 Shri Pradip M. Patel  Non- 4 4 Yes 4 - 4
  Independent
  Non-Executive
  Director

 Shri Prashant C. Amin Non- 4 4 Yes 9 - 2
  Independent      
  Non-Executive      
  Director      

 Shri Chirayu R. Amin Independent 4 1 Yes 8 - 2  
  Non-Executive      
  Director

 Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati * Independent  - - - - - - 
  Non-Executive 
  Director 

 * Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati has been appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f. 3.02.2014.

 Number of other Directorships held by the Directors, as mentioned above, do not include alternate directorships and directorships 
held in foreign companies, Section 8 Companies and Indian private limited companies and are based on the latest declarations 
received from the Directors.

 The Company did not have any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Independent Non-Executive Directors 
during the financial year 2014-15.

 (D) Disclosure regarding Directors retiring by rotation and being re-appointed:
  Shri Prashant C. Amin, Director retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer himself 

for re-appointment. 
  A brief resume and the profile of Shri Prashant C. Amin, Director retiring by rotation eligible for re-appointment at the 

ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company are given in the notice of Annual General Meeting, annexed to this 
Annual Report.
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  As per Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, resolution has been proposed for the appointment of Ms. Reena P. 
Bhagwati, as an Independent Director not liable to retire by rotation at ensuing Annual General Meeting.

 (E) Appointment of Independent Director
  On appointment of new Independent Director, Company issues a formal letter of appointment to Independent Director 

describing their duties, responsibilities, etc.

 (F)  Performance Evaluation
  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for performance evaluation of the Individual 

Directors and the Board. The framework of performance evaluation of the Independent Directors will capture the following 
points:

   Leadership & stewardship abilities;
   Contributing to clearly define corporate objectives & plans;
   Communication of expectations & concerns clearly with subordinates;
   Obtain adequate, relevant & timely information from external sources; 
   Review & approval achievement of strategic and operational plans, objectives, budgets;
   Regular monitoring of corporate results against projections;
   Identify, monitor & mitigate significant corporate risks;
   Assess policies, structures & procedures;
   Direct, monitor & evaluate KMPs, senior officials;
   Review management’s succession plan;
   Effective meetings;
   Assuring appropriate board size, composition, independence, structure;
   Clearly defining roles & monitoring activities of committees; and
   Review of corporation’s ethical conduct.

  The evaluation of performance of Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board by means of the replies 
given / observations made by all the Independent Directors on the set of questions which brought out the key attributes 
of the Directors quality of interactions among them and its effectiveness.

  For other Directors, a structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into consideration inputs received from the 
Directors, covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its 
Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and governance.

  A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the Chairman of the 
Board, who were evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and contribution, independence of judgement, 
safeguarding the interest of the Company and its minority shareholders etc. The performance evaluation of the Chairman 
and the Non Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The Directors expressed their satisfaction 
with the evaluation process.

 (G)  Separate Meeting of Independent Directors
  A separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on 17th March, 2015 to evaluate the performance of Non-

Independent Directors and the Board as a whole as well as the performance of the Chairman of the Company. In that 
meeting,	Independent	Directors	have	also	reviewed	the	flow	and	availability	of	information	from	the	Management	to	the	
Board.

 (H)  Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors
  On appointment, the concerned Director is issued a Letter of Appointment setting out in detail, the terms of appointment, 

duties, responsibilities and expected time commitments. During the first Board Meeting attended, each newly appointed 
Independent Director is taken through a formal induction program including the presentation from the Chairman on the 
Company’s manufacturing, marketing, finance and other important aspects. The Company Secretary briefs the Director 
about their legal and regulatory responsibilities as a Director. The Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors 
includes a detailed presentation by Business and Functional Heads, visit to the manufacturing site etc.

(4) Whistle Blower Policy
 We have established the mechanism for our employees to report concerns about the unethical behavior, actual and suspected 

fraud, or violation of our code of conduct and ethics policy. It also provides ethical safeguards against victimization of employees 
who avail of the mechanism, and also allows direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. We 
further affirm that no employee has been further denied to the Audit Committee.

 The details of such mechanism is communicated to all the directors and employees and is also disclosed on the website of the 
Company http://www.eleconepc.com/contact-us.

(5) Board Committees
 For better governance and accountability, the Board has constituted the mandatory committees. Currently, the Board has three 

Committees: 
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 (a) Audit Committee
 (b) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
 (c) Nomination and Remuneration Committee
 The terms of reference of these Committees are determined by the Board and their relevance reviewed from time to time. 

Meetings of each of these Committees are convened by the respective Chairman of the Committee, who also informs the Board 
about the summary of discussions held in the Committee Meetings. The Minutes of the Committee Meetings are sent to all 
Directors individually and tabled at the Board Meetings.

 (a) Audit Committee:-
  The Audit Committee acts as a link between the Auditors and the Board of Directors of the Company. The Primary objective 

of the Committee is to monitor and provide effective supervision of the Management’s Financial Reporting process to 
ensure accurate and timely disclosures, with the highest level of transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting. 
The Committee is governed by a Charter which is in line with the regulatory requirements mandated by Section 177 of 
the Companies Act, 2013. 

  During the year under review, the Audit Committee was constituted by way of passing the Board Resolution by the Board 
of Directors.

  Audit Committee comprises of experts specializing in accounting/financial management. The Chairman of the Audit 
Committee is a Non-executive and Independent Director. Shri Chirayu R. Amin has been appointed as a Chairman of the 
Audit Committee. However, in compliance with the law, the Audit Committee was re-constituted and as on 31st March, 
2015 it comprises following:

 Name of Members Designation Category

 Shri Chirayu R. Amin  Chairman Independent & Non-Executive Director

 Shri Pradip M. Patel* Member Non-Independent & Non-Executive Director

 Shri Prashant C. Amin Member Non-independent & Non-Executive Director

 Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati # Member Independent & Non-Executive Director

Name of Members  No. of meeting

   Held  Attended

Shri Prashant C. Amin 2  2

Shri Pradip M. Patel 2  2

Shri Chirayu R. Amin 2  -

  *# In the Board Meeting held on 3rd February, 2015; the Audit Committee was reconstituted and Shri Pradip M. Patel has 
resigned from the membership of the said committee and Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati was inducted in the said Committee 
to comply with the composition of the Audit Committee as per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made 
thereunder.

  Audit Committee attendance during the Year 2014-15:
  During the year two meetings of the Audit Committee were held – on 4th November, 2014 and 3rd February, 2015. The 

following members are present at the meeting.

  The CFO, Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors are permanent invitees to the meeting and attended & participated at the 
meetings of the Committee. Smt. Bharti Isarani, Company Secretary of the Company is the Secretary of the Committee 
and was present at all the above meetings.

 (b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee:-
  In compliance with the Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors has constituted the “Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee” in its meeting. The Company has formulated the Nomination and Remuneration Policy, 
which was approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee followed by the approval of the Board of Directors. 

  Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been constituted to recommend the remuneration package of Directors 
and KMPs based on the performance and defined criteria.

  Terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as under:-
	 	 •	 Formulation	of	the	criteria	for	determining	qualifications,	positive	attributes	and	independence	of	a	director	and	

recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and 
other employees; 

	 	 •	 Formulation	of	criteria	for	evaluation	of	Independent	Directors	and	the	Board;	
	 	 •	 Devising	a	policy	on	Board	diversity;	
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 Name of Members Designation Category

 Shri Chirayu R. Amin  Chairman Independent & Non-Executive Director

 Shri Pradip M. Patel Member Non-Independent & Non-Executive Director

 Shri Prashant C. Amin* Member Non-independent & Non-Executive Director

 Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati# Member Independent & Non-Executive Director

	 	 •	 Identifying	persons	who	are	qualified	to	become	directors	and	who	may	be	appointed	in	senior	management	in	
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal. The company 
shall disclose the remuneration policy and the evaluation criteria in its Annual Report.

  The Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises following 3 (Three) Non-executive Directors of the Company 
as the Members thereof. Shri Chirayu R. Amin has been appointed as a Chairman of the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee:

  *# In the Board Meeting held on 3rd February, 2015; the Nomination & Remuneration Committee was reconstituted and 
Shri Prashant C. Amin has resigned from the membership of the said committee and Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati was inducted 
in the said Committee.

  Nomination and Remuneration Committee attendance during the Year 2014-15:
  During the year only one meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held on 3rd February, 2015. The 

following members were present at the meeting:

Name of Members  No. of meeting
   Held  Attended
Shri Chirayu R. Amin 1  -

Shri Prashant C. Amin 1  1

Shri Pradip M. Patel 1  1

Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati 1  -

  In the meeting of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Shri Chirayu R. Amin was absent; hence Shri Pradip M. Patel 
occupied the Chair. 

  Smt. Bharti Isarani, Company Secretary of the Company is the Secretary of the Committee and she was present at the 
above mentioned meeting.

  (i) Nomination & Remuneration Policy
   The Company has adopted a Policy relating to the remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other 

employees of the Company. 
   The Company’s remuneration policy was driven by the success and performance of the managerial personnel. 

While reviewing the remuneration of managerial personnel, the Committee takes into account the following:
	 	 	 •		 Financial	position	of	the	Company
	 	 	 •		 Scales	prevailing	in	the	industry
	 	 	 •		 Appointee’s	qualification	and	expertise
	 	 	 •		 Past	performance
	 	 	 •	 Past	remuneration	etc.

  (ii)  Remuneration of Directors
   a. Non-Executive Directors
    During the year under review, the Non-executive Directors do not draw any remuneration from the Company 

other than the sitting fees. The Company pays the sitting fees to all the Non-executive Directors at the rate 
of ` 20,000/- for each meeting. The sitting fees paid to Non-executive Directors for attending Board and 
Committee Meetings during the year 2014-15 is as follows:

Name of Directors Sitting fees
   for 2014-15
Shri Pradip M. Patel 1,60,000

Shri Chirayu R. Amin 20,000

Shri Prashant C. Amin 1,60,000

Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati NIL

(Amt. in `)
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    Note: The above Sitting Fees excludes re-imbursement of the expenses incurred by Directors to attend the 
Meetings.

   b. Executive Directors
    During the year under review, the Company does not have any Executive Director on its Board. 

  (c) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
   In compliance of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company has constituted a 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board (“CSR Committee”) consisting of three Directors, to ensure 
that the Company complies with its ‘Corporate Social Responsibility Policy’.

   The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of the following Members:

 Name of Members Designation Category

 Shri Chirayu R. Amin Chairman   Independent & Non-Executive Director

 Shri Pradip M. Patel Member   Non-Independent &Non-Executive Director

 Shri Prashant C. Amin Member   Non-Independent &Non-Executive Director

 Year Location Date Day Time No. of Special
      Resolution passed

 2011-12 19-21, Panorama,       28-09-2012 Friday 11.00 a.m. NIL 
  2nd Floor, R. C. Dutt Road,                                                        
  Vadodara 390 007. 

 2012-13 C/o Elecon Engineering  14-08-2013 Wednesday 10.45 a.m. 1 (One)
  Company Limited
  Anand-Sojitra Road
  Vallabh Vidyanagar 388 120.

 2013-14 C/o Elecon Engineering  04-08-2014 Monday 2.00 p.m 3 (Three)
  Company Limited
  Anand-Sojitra Road
  Vallabh Vidyanagar 388 120.

 Name of Members Designation Category

 Shri Pradip M. Patel Chairman   Non-Independent & Executive Director

 Shri Prashant C. Amin Member   Non-Independent & Executive Director

 Shri Arvind Shore Member   CEO

   Smt. Bharti Isarani, Company Secretary of the Company is the Secretary of the Committee. One Meeting was held, 
during the financial year on 3rd February, 2015 and she was present at the meeting.

   Corporate Social Responsibility Committee attendance during the Year 2014-15:

   During the year only one meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was held on 3rd February, 2015. 
The following members were present at the meeting:

Name of Members  No. of Meeting
   Held  Attended
Shri Chirayu R. Amin 1  -

Shri Prashant C. Amin 1  1

Shri Pradip M. Patel 1  1

(6)  Risk Management Committee
 The Company has formed ‘Risk Management Committee’ on 3rd February, 2015 to consider and review various risks associated 

with business activities of the Company.

 The Risk Management Committee comprises of the following persons:

 Smt. Bharti Isarani, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer and Secretary of the Committee. No Meeting of the Committee 
was held, during the financial year.

(7) Details of General Meetings

 Location, date and time of Annual General Meetings held during last 3 years:
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 During the year ended 31st March, 2015, no resolution has been passed by the members through Postal Ballot.

(8) Disclosures on Materially Significant Related Party Transactions

 Full disclosure of related party transactions as per Accounting Standard - 18 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India are given under Note No. 32 of Notes to Financial Statements. 

(9) Details of Non-compliance by the Company and penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by the Registrar of Companies 
or any Statutory Authorities during the last three years

 The Company has complied with the requirements of Registrar of Companies and Statutory Authorities on all matters during 
the last three years. 

 All Returns/Reports were filed within stipulated time with all the statutory authorities.

 No penalties or strictures was imposed by the Registrar of Companies or any other Statutory Authorities during the last three 
years.

(10)   Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

 In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the Accounting Standards issued by the ICAI. The 
significant accounting policies applied in preparation and presentation of financial statements has been set out in Note No. 
2 of Notes to Financial Statements.

(11) General Shareholders Information 
 a)  Annual General Meeting
  Date and Time   : Thursday, 13th August, 2015 at 12.30 p.m.
  Venue     : Elecon Engineering Co. Limited,    
                     Anand-Sojitra Road,
           Vallabh Vidyanagar – 388 120, Gujarat.

 b)  Financial Calendar   : April 01 to March 31

 c)  Plant Locations   : Works
        1.  Material Handling Equipment Division (MHE)
                 Anand -Sojitra Road,
             Vallabh Vidyanagar - 388 120 Gujarat.
        2.   Plot number 24 situated at Savli Industrial Estate, GIDC, 
         revenue survey numbers 1517/P, 1518/P, 1473/P, 1474/P and 1475/P 
         within the village limits of Manjusar, Taluka Savli, District Vadodara
        3. B/H Eimco Shed
                    Anand-Sojitra Road, Vallabh Vidyanagar -388 120.
                    Dist : Anand, Gujarat.
        4. GIDC Shed -9/2 &9/3, GIDC
         Vithal Udyognagar, Dist : Anand, Gujarat.
 Address of Regd. Office      : C/o Elecon Engineering Company Limited
        Anand -Sojitra Road, 
        Vallabh Vidyanagar - 388 120. Gujarat
 Internet website      : www.eleconepc.com
 Address for Correspondence  : Smt. Bharti L. Isarani
         Company Secretary
        Elecon EPC Projects Limited
        C/o Elecon Engineering Company Limited
        Anand -Sojitra Road,
        Vallabh Vidyanagar - 388 120. Gujarat
        Tel. No. (02692) 230166, 237016, 227097
        Fax No. (02692) 227020
        E-mail : blisarani@eleconepc.com
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(12) Shareholding pattern as on 31-03-2015

 During the year under review, your Company has allotted 1,27,32,000 Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable 
Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each to Elecon Engineering Company Limited. 

 Consequently, Elecon Engineering Company Limited holds 99.86% in the paid-up share capital of the Company.

(13) Chairman of the Board

 No Separate office is maintained for Non-Executive Chairman and therefore during the year under review, no expenses 
were incurred in connection therewith.

(14) Shareholder rights to receive Financial Results

 The financial results of the Company for every annual are available to the shareholders.

(15)  Postal Ballot

 The provisions relating to Postal Ballot will be complied with in respect of matters where applicable.

(16)  Audit Qualifications

 During the year under review, there was no audit qualification in the Company’s financial statements. The Company 
continues to adopt best practices to ensure the regime of unqualified financial statements.

 Category No. of Equity Shares held (%) of total

 Elecon Engineering Company Limited 2,70,170 60.49
 Promoters - Individual 6,661 1.49
                    Company 1,62,353 36.36
                    Trust 7,425 1.66
 TOTAL  4,46,609 100.00
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To,
The Members of,
ELECON EPC PROJECTS LTD.,
Vallabh Vidyanagar.

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements 
of ELECON EPC PROJECTS LIMITED (the “Company”), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 
2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow 
Statement for the year then ended and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial 
Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for 
the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation 
of these standalone financial statements that give a 
true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with 
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audit. 
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, 
the accounting and auditing standards and matters 
which are required to be included in the audit report 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
there under.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) 
of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 
financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation 
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in 
place an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by 
the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the financial statements.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by 
the Act in the manner so required and give a true and 
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India:
(a)  in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of 

affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2015;
(b)  in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of 

the profit for the year ended on that date; and
(c)  in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the 

cash	flows	for	the	year	ended	on	that	date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 

Order, 2015 (“the Order”), as amended, issued by 
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section 11 of section 143 of the Act, we give in the 
Annexure a statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 3 & 4 of the Order, to the extent 
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report 
that:

 a. we have sought  and obtained al l  the 
information and explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary 
for the purpose of our audit;

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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For  THACKER BUTALA DESAI                                       
Chartered Accountants

                                          M. T.  DESAI                 
      Partner 
Place : Navsari Membership No. : 030911
Date :  05-05-2015  Firm Regn. No. 110864W

 b. in our opinion proper books of account 
as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books;

 c. the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and 
Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone 
f inancial  statements comply with the 
Accounting Standards specif ied under 
section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e. on the basis of written representations 
received from the directors as on March 31, 
2015, and taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified 
as on March 31, 2015, from being appointed as 
a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f.  With respect to the other matters to be 
included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 

the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us:

  i. The Company has disclosed the impact 
of pending litigations on its financial 
position in its financial statements 
–  Refer  Note 28 to  the f inancial 
statements; 

  ii. The Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts 
for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses.

  iii. There were no amounts which were 
required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the 
Company.
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(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements‘ section of our report of 
even date)
(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and 

situation of its fixed assets.
 (b) We have been informed that, a portion of the Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the 

management during the year in accordance with a programme  of verification in a phased manner and 
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of   physical 
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 

(ii) (a) As explained to us, inventories were physically verified by the management during the year.
 (b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures of physical 

verification of inventories followed by the management were reasonable and adequate in relation to the 
size of the Company and the nature of its business.

 (c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
maintained proper records of its inventories and discrepancies noticed on physical verification have been 
properly dealt with in the books of account of the Company.

(iii) (a) According to the information & explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any secured or 
unsecured loan to any party listed in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

 (b) In view of clause (iii) (a) above, this clause regarding receipt of principal amount and interest thereon is 
not applicable.

 (c) In view of (iii) (a) above, this clause regarding overdue amounts of such loans and interest thereon is not 
applicable.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is adequate Internal 
Control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business for the purchase of 
inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. We have not observed any major weakness 
in the internal control system during the course of the audit.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not invited 
deposits from the public during the year. Therefore, provisions of the clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable 
to the Company. 

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account and records maintained by the Company pursuant to the 
Companies (Cost Accounting Records) Rules, 2011 prescribed by the Central Government for the maintenance 
of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that prima facie the 
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.  We have, however, not made a detailed 
examination of the records with a view to determining whether they are accurate or complete.  

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues, the Company 
has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Investor 
Education & Protection Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Sales Tax, Custom 
Duty, Excise Duty, VAT, Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with 
appropriate authorities.

  According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues, there were 
no undisputed amount payable in respect of Provident Fund, Investor Education & Protection Fund, 
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Sales Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, VAT, Service 
Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2015 for a period of more than 
six months from the date they became payable. 

 (b) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not paid the following statutory 
dues on account of the demand being disputed by the Company.

   Sr.   Name of Statute Nature Amount ` Period to which Forum where 
   No.   of dues  the amount the Dispute is 
        relates pending
  1. Central Excise Act, 1944  Excise Duty, Service 5372.51 1988-89 to 1993-94  CESTAT
    and Service Tax Act. Tax &  Penalties Lacs & 2006-07 to 2013-14  

ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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  2. Central Excise Act, 1944 Service Tax,  8.14 2007-08 Central Excise   
  and Service Tax.  & Penalties Lacs  Commissioner 

         (Appeal)

  3. Central Sales Tax Act, 1956  Sales Tax/ 233.39 1992.93 Odisha High Court
    & Sales Tax Acts of  Work Contract Lacs
    various States. Tax

   4. Central Sales Tax Act, 1956  Sales Tax/ 439.29 2005-06 to  Dy. Commissioner
    & Sales Tax Acts of  Work Contract Lacs 2008-09 of Commercial 
    various States. Tax   Tax, Maharashtra

  5. Central Sales Tax Act, 1956  Sales Tax/ 18.48 2009-10 Senior Joint
    & Sales Tax Acts of  Work Contract Lacs  Commissioner
    various States. Tax   (West Bengal)

  6. Central Sales Tax Act, 1956  Sales Tax/ 347.05 2010-11 President, 
    & Sales Tax Acts of  Work Contract Lacs  Commercial Tax,
    various States. Tax   Appellate 
         Revisional Board

  7. Central Sales Tax Act, 1956  Sales Tax/ 117.00 2011-12 Additional
    & Sales Tax Acts of  Work Contract Lacs  Commissioner,
    various States. Tax   West Bengal

 (c) The Company is not required to transfer any amount to the  Investor Education and Protection Fund in 
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and Rules made there under. 

(viii) According to the records of the Company, it has no accumulated losses. The Company has not incurred cash 
losses during the financial year under review or during the immediately preceding financial year.

(ix) According to our audit procedure and on the basis of information and explanations given by the management, 
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any Financial Institution, Bank and Debenture Holders. 

(x) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of the 
guarantees given by the Company for loans taken by others from Banks or Financial Institutions are not prima-
facie prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information & explanations given to us, the company has not obtained any 
term loan during the year under review. Accordingly,  paragraph 3 (xi) of the Order is not applicable.

(xii) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial 
statement and as per information and explanations given by the management, no material frauds on or by the 
Company were noticed or reported during the year under review.

For  THACKER BUTALA DESAI
Chartered Accountants

M. T. DESAI 
    Partner
Place  : Navsari  Membership No. : 030911
Date   : 05-05-2015    Firm Regn. No. 110864W
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   (` in Lacs)

         As at  As at
     Notes  31st March, 2015   31st March, 2014

 I.       EQUITY AND LIABILITIES       
 1) SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS 
  (a)  Share Capital     3   12,776.66   44.66 
   (b) Reserves and Surplus     4   9,073.71   8,820.10  

              21,850.37   8,864.76  
 2) NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES    
  (a)  Long-term borrowings     5    246.14   895.75
  (b)  Deferred Tax liabilities (Net)    6   333.89   405.30 
  (c)  Other Long term liabilities    7   7,167.84   8,663.15 
  (d)  Long-term provisions     8   133.57   121.03 
               7,881.44   10,085.23  

 3) CURRENT LIABILITIES          
   (a)  Short-Term Borrowings     9   16,634.81   20,457.97 
   (b)  Trade payables      27,538.51   24,884.36 
   (c)  Other current liabilities     10   24,164.27   40,118.71 
   (d)  Short-term provisions     11   21.97   24.24    
           68,359.56   85,485.28 
    TOTAL         98,091.37   1,04,435.27   

II. ASSETS    
 1)  NON - CURRENT ASSETS
  (a)  Fixed Assets     12 
   (i)  Tangible Assets       6,874.76   8,285.93 
   (ii)  Intangible Assets       282.13   375.85 
   (iii) Capital Work-in-Progress      180.04   48.89   
           7,336.93   8,710.67  
   (b)  Non-current investments      -     -   
   (c)  Long-term loans and advances    13    1,174.42   1,067.58 
   (d)  Other non-current assets     14    5,295.66   6,446.25   
           13,807.01   16,224.50
 2)  CURRENT ASSETS     
   (a)  Current investments      -     -   
   (b)  Inventories     15   12,080.60   14,189.41 
   (c)  Trade receivables     16   63,877.84   65,201.67 
   (d)  Cash and cash equivalents   17   311.43   258.28 
   (e) Short-term loans and advances    18   7,867.72   8,433.51 
   (f)  Other current assets     19   146.77   127.90     
           84,284.36   88,210.77  

       TOTAL         98,091.37   1,04,435.27

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 2 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached    

For and on behalf of  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
THACKER BUTALA DESAI    
Chartered Accountants   
 P. M. Patel  P. C. Amin
 Director   Director 
M. T. Desai DIN : 00012138  DIN : 01056652 
Partner 
M. No. 030911 Rajat Jain Bharti Isarani
Firm Regi. No. 110864W Chief Financial Offcier Company Secretary

Place : Navsari Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar
Date : 05-05-2015 Date : 30-04-2015

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2015
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(` in Lacs)

       Year Ended Year Ended
    Notes 31stMarch, 2015   31stMarch, 2014
          
I. Revenue from operations    20 
 a)  Sale of Products (Gross)     47,153.19  48,104.60  
  Less :  Excise Duty       (3,148.95) (4,284.67)  

   Sale of Products (Net)        44,004.24  43,819.93   

  b)  Sales of Services        6,864.23  5,748.54
  c)  Other Operating Revenues      874.18  634.98
   Total (a+b+c)          51,742.65  50,203.45 

II.  Other Income  21      271.59  39.23 

III. Total Revenue (I + II)        52,014.24  50,242.68   

IV.  Expenses:
 a.  Cost of materials consumed  22   27,778.30  26,320.23 
 b.  Changes in inventories of finished goods,  23   1,638.30   1,284.77
  work-in progress and Stock-in-Trade 
  c. Manufacturing expenses and Erection Charges  24   9,378.91  8,606.42 
  d.  Employee benefits expense   25   2,798.28   3,530.93 
  e.  Finance costs    26   2,868.04  3,125.13 
  f.  Depreciation and amortization expense   1,170.80  934.42 
  g.  Other expenses    27   6,053.42  6,090.82  

  Total Expenses (a to g)        51,686.05  49,892.72

V.  PROFIT BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITMES & TAX (III-IV)     328.19  349.96  
VI.   EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS     -     -    
VII.  PROFIT BEFORE TAX (V-VI)      328.19  349.96
VIII.  Tax expense :     
 (a)  Current Tax     146.00  73.35 
 (b)  Deferred Tax     (71.42) 180.42 
 (c)  MAT Credit Entitlement     -    (73.35)
IX.  PROFIT AFTER TAX (VII-VIII)       253.61  169.54  
X.  Earnings per Equity Share :
 (1) Basic     56.79  37.96 
 (2) Diluted     56.79   37.96
 Face Value Per Share (`)    10.00 10.00

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

As per our report of even date attached    

For and on behalf of  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
THACKER BUTALA DESAI    
Chartered Accountants   
 P. M. Patel  P. C. Amin
 Director   Director 
M. T. Desai DIN : 00012138  DIN : 01056652 
Partner 
M. No. 030911 Rajat Jain Bharti Isarani
Firm Regi. No. 110864W Chief Financial Offcier Company Secretary

Place : Navsari Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar
Date : 05-05-2015 Date : 30-04-2015
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   (` in Lacs)

  As on 31-03-2015   As on 31-03-2014
 Amount  Amount Amount  Amount

[A] CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     
 1. Net Profit before Tax      328.19    349.96
 2. Adjustments for:    
  (i)     Depreciation and Amortisation  1,170.80    934.42  
  (ii)    Finance Cost  2,868.04    3,125.13  
  (iii)   Loss / (Profit) on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net)  (1.79)   11.83  
  (iv)   Interest Income  (9.04)   (13.38) 
  (v)    Bad Debts Written Off  75.00   4,103.01   75.00   4,133.00  
  Operating Profit Before Working    
  Capital Changes  ( 1 + 2 )     4,431.20    4,482.96

 3. Adjustments for Working Capital changes :
  [i]    Trade & Other Receivables
   *  Trade receivables   1,248.83    (82.87)
   *  Loans and Advances  1,590.67    (3,897.09)

  [ii]   Trade & Other payables   
           *  Trade payables    2,654.15    364.59    
   *  Other payables    (17,447.32)   10,280.30 

  [iii] Inventories    2,108.81   (9,844.86)  2,752.98   9,417.91

  CASH GENERATED/(USED IN) FROM OPERATIONS     (5,413.66)   13,900.87 

 4. Less:  Direct Taxes Paid     -      (1,025.00)

 NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES [A]     (5,413.66)   12,875.87

[B] CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     
 1. Purchase of Fixed Assets  (143.91)  (51.80)
 2. Sale of Fixed Assets  345.06    -   
 3. Slump Sale consideration transferred 
  to Pref. Share Capital  12,732.00    -   
 4. Interest Received  9.04   13.38 

 NET CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN)    12,942.19   12,942.19   (38.42)  (38.42)
 INVESTING ACTIVITIES [B]

[C] CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES     
 1. Proceeds from Long Term borrowings  -      - 
 2. Repayments against Long Term Borrowings  (775.77)   (982.75)
 3. Short Term Borrowings (Net)  (3,823.16)   (8,593.98)
 4. Finance cost Paid  (2,876.45)   (3,154.10)
 5. Dividends Paid (incl. tax thereon)  -      (992.77)       

 NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES [C]    (7,475.38)  (7,475.38)  (13,723.60)  (13,723.60)   

[D] NET INCR./(DECR.) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS [A+B+C]     53.15    (886.15)

[E] Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year    258.28    1,144.43

[F] Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year    311.43    258.28

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015
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   (` in Lacs)

  As on 31-03-2015   As on 31-03-2014
 Amount  Amount Amount  Amount

1. Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents :- 
 Cash on hand   0.54  0.36
 Balances with banks   
  In Current Accounts   195.76  142.83
     In Fixed Deposit Account   115.13  115.09
  Unclaimed Dividend Account  -  -

     311.43  258.28

2.  The	above	cash	flow	statement	has	been	prepared	under	the	“Indirect	Method”	as	set	out	in	the	Accounting	Standard	-	3	
on Cash Flow Statement notified in Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

For and on behalf of  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
THACKER BUTALA DESAI    
Chartered Accountants   
 P. M. Patel  P. C. Amin
 Director   Director 
M. T. Desai DIN : 00012138  DIN : 01056652 
Partner 
M. No. 030911 Rajat Jain Bharti Isarani
Firm Regi. No. 110864W Chief Financial Offcier Company Secretary

Place : Navsari Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar
Date : 05-05-2015 Date : 30-04-2015
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON ACCOUNTS TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 31StMARCH, 2015        

1. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting 

Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the 2013 Act”) / Companies Act, 1956 (“the 1956 Act”), as applicable.

 The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those followed in 
the previous year. 

 The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the Management to make 
estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent 
liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year.  The Management believes that the estimates 
used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.  Future results could differ due to these 
estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the periods in which 
the results are known / materialise.       

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 a) Fixed Assets

  i) Tangible Assets: Fixed Assets are recorded at cost of acquisition / construction less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises of the purchase price and attributable cost 
of bringing the Assets to its working condition for its intended use, but excludes Cenvat / service tax / 
VAT credit availed.      

  ii) Intangible Assets: Intangible Assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits 
that	are	attributable	to	the	asset	will	flow	to	the	enterprise	and	the	cost	of	the	asset	can	be	measured	
reliably.      

 b) Borrowing Cost
  Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing 

of funds and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowing to the extent that they are regarded 
as an adjustment to interest costs.      

  Financing costs relating to borrowed funds attributable to construction or acquisition of fixed assets for the 
period up to the completion of construction or acquisition of fixed assets are included in the cost of the assets 
to which they relate.      

 c) Depreciation & Amortisation

  Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated 
residual value. Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on the straight-line method on Plant & 
machineries and on written down value on all other fixed assets as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 
II to The Companies Act, 2013.       

  Intangible assets are amortised using the straight-line method over estimated useful life as under: -  
  i)  Software & Licenses: over a period of six years     
  ii)  Technical know-how : over a period of six years from the date of actual production.

 d) Inventories
  Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (e.g. on FIFO / weighted average basis) and the net realisable value 

after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered necessary. Cost includes all charges 
in bringing the goods to the point of sale, including octroi and other levies, transit insurance and receiving 
charges. Work-in-progress and finished goods include appropriate proportion of overheads and, where 
applicable, excise duty.      

   The cost of inventories is arrived at on the following basis:
  Raw Materials and stores : Weighted Average Cost.
  Stock-in-process   : Raw Materials at Weighted Average Cost & absorption of Labour and Overheads. 
  Finished Goods    : Raw Materials at Weighted Average Cost & absorption of Labour and Overheads. 

 e) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
  Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present 

obligation	as	a	result	of	past	events	and	it	is	probable	that	there	will	be	an	outflow	of	resources.	Contingent	
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liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent assets are 
neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

 f) Revenue Recognition
  i)  Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods 

are transferred to the customer, which is generally on dispatch of goods. Sales are net of discounts, 
VAT/sales tax and returns; excise duties collected.

  ii)  Income on turnkey contracts (including erection charges) is accounted for on the basis of billings made 
on customers against mutually agreed billing schedules.      

   Advances received from customers in respect of contracts, which are not in relation to work performed 
thereon, are shown as “Advance from Customers”.

   Amounts retained by customers until satisfaction of conditions specified in the contract for release of 
such	amounts	are		reflected	as	Sundry	debtors.	 	 	 	 	 	

   Credits are taken for claims in respect of cost escalation and extra work as and when and to the extent 
admitted by customers.      

  iii)   Interest revenues are recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding 
and the rate applicable.

  iv)  Dividend from investments in Shares is accounted for when the right to receive dividend is established.
  v)  Export incentives are accounted for as and when the claims thereof have been admitted by the 

authorities.      
  vi)  Revenue in respect of other income is recognised when a reasonable certainty as to its realisation exists.

 g) Foreign Currency Transactions
  Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the time of 

the transaction.      
  Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are restated at the year-end rates. In case 

of items, which are covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year-end rate and the 
rate on the date of contract is recognised as exchange difference and the premium paid on forward contracts 
is recognised over the life of the contract.

   Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.      
  Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is recognized 

in the statement of profit and loss.      

 h) Retirement Benefits
  Defined Contribution Plan : The Company’s contributions paid/payable for the year to Provident Fund and ESIC 

are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year.      

  Defined Benefit Plan: The Company’s liabilities towards gratuity and leave encashment are determined 
using the projected unit credit method which considers each period of service as giving rise to an additional 
unit of benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. Past services 
are recognised on a straight-line basis over the average period until the amended benefits become vested. 
Actuarial gain and losses are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss account as income 
or	expense.	Obligation	 is	measured	at	 the	present	value	of	estimated	future	cash	flows	using	a	discounted	
rate that is determined by reference to market yields at the balance sheet date on Government bonds where 
the currency and terms of the Government bonds are consistent with the currency and estimated terms of 
the defined benefit obligation.      

 i) Impairment of Assets
  Fixed Assets are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that 

the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is then recognised for the amount by which 
the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of an asset’s net selling 
price and value in use.       

  j) Accounting for Tax
  (a)  Current Tax is accounted on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting year and 

in accordance with applicable tax rates and the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961. 
  (b)  Deferred Tax resulting from “timing differences” between accounting and taxable profit for the period 

is accounted by using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted as at the 
balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty 
that the assets can be realized in future. Net deferred tax liability is arrived at after setting off deferred 
tax assets.



54

3. SHARE CAPITAL   (` in Lacs)

    As at   As at 
  31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014

A) Authorised Share Capital 
 i)  5,00,000 (previous year 5,00,000 of ` 10/- each)    50.00   50.00
   Equity Shares of ` 10/- each   
 ii)  1,27,50,000 Preference Shares (Previous year Nil) of ` 100 each    12,750.00   -

         12,800.00   50.00
B)  Issued Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
 4,46,609 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each       
 (Previous year 4,46,609 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each)   44.66   44.66
 1,27,32,000 Preference Shares of ` 100 each   12,732.00   -
 (Previous year Nil )       
        Total     12,776.66   44.66 
 

(C)    Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period :  

 Particulars     31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014

 1)  Equity Shares
  Outstanding at the beginning of the Year   4,46,609   2,70,170
  Add : Issued During the year   -     1,76,439
  Outstanding at the end of the Year    4,46,609   4,46,609 
  2)  Preference Shares
  Outstanding at the beginning of the Year    -     -
  Add : Issued During the year    1,27,32,000   -   
  Outstanding at the end of the Year    1,27,32,000   -   
(D) Rights preferences and restrictions attached to Shares:-
 (1)  Rights preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares: 
  The company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of ̀ 10/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for 

one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders 
in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend.

  In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after 
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

 (2)  Rights preferences and restrictions attached to 0% Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares:
  The company has only one class of Preference Shares having a par value of ` 100/- per share. The dividend, if any, on 

preference shares proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting. Each holder of Preference Share is entitled to one vote per share only on resolutions placed before 
the Company which directly affect the rights attached to the said shares.

  In the event of liquidation of the company, preference share holders have a preferential right over equity shareholders 
to be repaid to the extent of paid-up capital & dividend in arrears, if any, on such shares. 

  There is lock-in period of 6 years from the date of allotment for the said preference shares.

(E)    Shares held by holding company, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries

 Particulars     31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014

 1)  Equity Shares
  Elecon Engineering Company Limited, Holding Company    27.02   27.02
  2,70,170 equity shares of `10/- each fully paid up
  (Previous year 2,70,170 equity shares of `10/- each)

 2)   0% Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares:
  Elecon Engineering Company Limited, Holding Company    12,732.00  -
  1,27,32,000 preference shares of ` 100/- each fully paid up (Previous year Nil)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

(` in Lacs)
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(` in Lacs)

4. RESERVES AND SURPLUS   (` in Lacs)

    As at   As at 
  31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 

(a)  General Reserve  
  As per Last Financial Statements    7,179.38   7,029.38 
  Add  : Transferred from Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss    -     150.00 

  Closing Balance    7,179.38   7,179.38 

(b)  Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss  

  As per Last Financial Statements    1,640.72   1,621.18 
  Add   : Transferred during the year from Statement of Profit and Loss  253.61   169.54 
   Less  : Appropriations       

    Transfer to General Reserve    -     150.00

     Total Appropriations     -    150.00 

   Net Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss     1,894.33 1,640.72 

  Total Reserves and Surplus    9,073.71   8,820.10

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

(F)    Details of Shareholders holding more than 5 percent Shares:-     

 Particulars     31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014

 1)  Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up  (Previous year ` 10 each fully paid up)

  (a)   Elecon Engineering Company Limited   Nos.  2,70,170   2,70,170 
        % Holding  60.49% 60.49%

   (b)   K. B. Investments Pvt. Ltd.   Nos.  50,651   50,651
        % Holding  11.34% 11.34%

  (c) Bipra Investment & Trust Pvt. Ltd.   Nos.  45,017   45,017 
       % Holding  10.08% 10.08%

  (d)   Emtici Engineering Limited   Nos.   29,954   29,954 
        % Holding  6.71% 6.71%

 2)  0% Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable  
  Preference Shares of ` 100/- each fully paid up (Previous year Nil)    
 

  (a)   Elecon Engineering Company Limited   Nos.  1,27,32,000  -   
        % Holding  100.00% -  

(G)  Aggregate number of preference shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received   
 in cash during the period of 5 years immediately preceding the date of Balance Sheet:-

 Particulars     31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014

  (1)  Preference Shares allotted as fully paid up     12,732.00  -  

(` in Lacs)
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 5. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

         As at   As at 
         31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014
 Secured        
  (a)  Term loans         
    From banks        246.14   895.75  

             246.14   895.75   

 (a) Nature of Securities 

  i)  Term Loans [(a) above]  obtained from Indusind Bank Limited is secured by exclusive charge by way of 
Hypothecation on specific assets for which payments were made out of the term loan. 

   Also, further secured by Corporate Guarantee of Elecon Engineering Company Limited. Since been repaid fully. 

(` in Lacs)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

 (b)  Terms of repayment of term loans and other loans     

  1. Terms Loans

  Lender   31st March, 2015   31st March, 2014  Terms of Repayment 

   (i)   Indusind Bank Ltd.  246.14   752.61   Repayable in equated quarterly instalments of 
       ` 123.07 Lacs starting from November
       2012.  
   (ii)   Bank of Baroda  -     143.14   Repayable in equated monthly instalments of 
       ` 9.72 Lacs starting from May 2012 & 
        ̀  0.19 Lacs starting from March 2013.

     246.14   895.75 

(` in Lacs)

(` in Lacs)6.   DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

    As at   As at 
  31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014

 (a)  Deferred Tax Liabilities
   In respect of difference between book & Tax W. D. V.     397.79   443.30 

  (b) Deferred Tax Assets
   In respect of disallowance under the Income Tax Act.    (63.90) (38.00)

  Net Deferred Tax Liability       333.89   405.30

(` in Lacs)7.   OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

    As at   As at 
  31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014

 (a)   Trade payables    1,253.03   923.05 

  (b)   Deposits      5.46   5.61 

 (c)   Advance from Customers    5,909.35   7,734.49

              7,167.84   8,663.15
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(` in Lacs)8.  LONG-TERM PROVISIONS     

    As at   As at 
  31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014

  (a)  Provision for employee benefits:       
  Provision for Leave Encashment      133.57   121.03

           133.57   121.03

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

(` in Lacs)9.   SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS    

    As at   As at 
  31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014

 Secured        
(a)  Loans repayable on demand:       
 Working Capital Loans

   -  From banks      15,602.81   20,175.97   
 Unsecured        

(a)   Other Loans       
 -  From others      1,032.00   282.00

          16,634.81   20,457.97

(i) Nature of Securities {(a) Loans repayable on demand}     

 Working Capital Loans from banks (secured) granted by Consortium of Banks consisting of State Bank of India (As Lead Bank), 
Bank of Baroda, Export Import Bank of India, HDFC Bank Ltd., IDBI Bank Ltd., Axis Bank Limited, Standard Chartered Bank & 
Indusind Bank Limited are secured by first pari passu hypothecation charge over of movable plant and machinery and assets 
of the Company excluding certain assets specifically / exclusively charged to other banks/ financial institutions but including 
the whole of the Company’s Currents Assets, Inventories, Receivables and Book Debts ranking pari passu inter se in respect of 
working capital facilities  and guarantees issued by them in favour of various clients of the Company. 

 Further, the working capital facilities are secured by Corporate Guarantee of Elecon Engineering Company Limited, Prayas 
Engineering Limited & Emtici Engineering Limited.

(` in Lacs)10.  OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES    

    As at   As at 
  31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014

 (a)   Current maturities of        
   Term Loan (Secured)     492.29   618.45

  (b)   Advance from Customers    10,754.25   10,467.95 
  (c)   Interest accrued but not due on borrowings    48.58   56.99 
 (d)   Other Payables     12,578.70   16,064.46 
 (e)   Statutory & Other liabilities    279.22   167.19
  (f)   Deposits     11.23   11.23 
  (g)   Payable as per Scheme of Arrangement     -    12,732.44   

           24,164.27   40,118.71

(` in Lacs)11. SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS    

    As at   As at 
  31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014

 Provision for employee benefits:

    Provision for Leave Encashment     21.97   24.24 

               21.97   24.24
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13.  LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES     (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 

A. Unsecured, Considered Good 
 (a)  Deposits   524.67   565.77 
 (b) Advances recoverable in Cash or Kind  0.47   0.47 
 (c) Advance Payment of Tax (net of provision for taxation)   575.93   427.99 
 (d) MAT Credit Entitlement   73.35   73.35  

  Total   1,174.42   1,067.58

15.  INVENTORIES      (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 

 At lower of cost or net realisable value      
 (a)  Raw Materials   3,325.16   3,796.25 
 (b)  Raw Materials-in-Transit    -     -   
 (c)   Semi-Finished Goods    8,473.70   10,112.00
 (d)  Finished Goods   -     -
 (e)   Stores and Spares    281.74   281.16 

       12,080.60   14,189.41

16.  TRADE RECEIVABLES       (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 

 Unsecured, Considered Good :      
 (a)   Outstanding for a period exceeding six month from the Due date      28,298.66   29,440.92   
 (b)   Others     35,579.18   35,760.75   
        63,877.84   65,201.67

14.  OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS     (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 

 Unsecured, Considered Good 
 (a) Long Term Trade Receivables   5,295.66   6,446.25 

         5,295.66   6,446.25 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015



Elecon EPC Projects Limited  | 24th Annual Report 2014 - 15 61

17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 

 Cash and Cash Equivalent
  (a)  Balance with Banks :
   In Current Account    195.76   142.83
   Deposit with original maturity of less than 3 months    115.13   115.09

 (b)   Cash on hand    0.54   0.36
         311.43   258.28

19.  OTHER CURRENT ASSETS     (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 

 Other Receivables 
  - From Others    146.77   127.90

      146.77  127.90

18.  SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES      (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 

 Unsecured, Considered Good 

 (a)  Advances Recoverable in Cash/Kind or for value to be received   6,206.34   6,954.80
 (b)  Balance with Collector of Custom, Port Trust, Excise etc.  1,021.46   892.92
 (c)  Prepaid Expenses  612.89   524.00
 (d)  Gratuity paid in Advance  27.03   61.79

          7,867.72   8,433.51  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

20.  REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 

  (a)  Sale of Products      
   Material Handling Equipments     42,181.19   43,195.45 
   Export Sales    1,823.05   624.48
        44,004.24   43,819.93
   (b)  Sale of Services      
    Erection Charges    6,864.23   5,748.54
   
  (c)  Other operating revenues      
   Scrap Sales    869.81   619.47 
   Duty Drawback    4.37   15.51   
        874.18   634.98

       51,742.65   50,203.45
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21. OTHER INCOME    (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 

 (a)   Interest Income   9.04   13.38
 (b)   Profit/(Loss) on Sales of Assets (Net of Losses)   1.79   -
 (c)   Rent Income   15.66   15.82
 (d)   Miscellaneous Income    110.54   10.03
 (e)   Profit on account of Exchange Variation    134.56   -  

           271.59   39.23

22.  COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED     (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 

  Raw Materials Consumed      27,778.30   26,320.23   

         27,778.30   26,320.23  

 a. Raw Materials Consumed in broad heads  :     
   Iron & Steel  8,888.65   8,401.91 
   Forgings   743.16   377.11 
   Bearings   1,158.71   1,078.78 
   Electricals  2,291.28   4,256.86 
   Castings   1,123.64   894.62 
   Hydraulic    4,234.63   2,927.46 
   Gear & Coupling    1,006.56   2,861.02 
   Other Components   8,331.67   5,522.47 

        27,778.30   26,320.23   

 b. Value of Indigenous and Imported Raw Materials Consumed during the year :       
 

  Imported  Value        388.24   1,231.51 
     Percentage     1% 5%

  Indigenous  Value       27,390.06   25,088.72 
     Percentage  99%    95%

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

23. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND  STOCK-IN-TRADE  
 (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 

 (a)   Opening Stock :      
   Semi-finished Goods (WIP)     10,112.00   11,396.77   
    Finished Goods   -     -   
        10,112.00   11,396.77   
 (b)   Closing Stock :      
   Semi-finished Goods (WIP)     8,473.70   10,112.00
   Finished Goods   -   -   

        8,473.70   10,112.00

       1,638.30   1,284.77   
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24.  MANUFACTURING EXPENSES AND ERECTION CHARGES    (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 

 (a)   Stores, Tools and Spares Consumed   528.67   651.86 
 (b)   Sub-Contracting Charges   6,713.11   5,652.80 
 (c)   Power and Fuel   341.18   414.74 
 (d)  Erection and other charges   1,501.67   1,538.61 
 (e)   Other manufacturing expenses   294.28   348.41 
        9,378.91   8,606.42 

  a.  Value of Indigenous and Imported Stores, Tools and Spares Consumed during the year :        
 

  Imported  Value        5.44 47.29
    Percentage   1% 7%

  Indigenous  Value   523.23 604.57
    Percentage  99% 93%

25.  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE      (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 

 (a)   Salaries and Wages   2,515.52   3,264.42
 (b)   Contribution to Provident Fund   119.54   158.37
 (c)   Employees’ Welfare Expenses   97.44   104.08
 (d)  Employees’ Retirement Benefits    65.78   4.06

         2,798.28   3,530.93

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

26.  FINANCE COST       (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 

  (a)  Interest Expense   2,761.86   3,029.47 
 (b)  Other Borrowing Cost   106.18   95.66

       2,868.04   3,125.13 
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27. OTHER EXPENSES   (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 

  (a)  Technical Know how and Design Fees   360.77   139.10 
 (b)  Rent    792.29   893.85
  (c)  Computer Software Charges    216.11   313.43 
 (d) Rates & Taxes   351.06   193.79
  (e)  Excise Duty (excluding duty recovered       
   From Customers)   -     0.15  
 (f)  Repairs and Maintenance :      
   Buildings   61.90   63.14 
    Machineries   322.23   338.46 
    Others   70.53   84.06 
  (g)   Insurance (net of recoveries)   94.48   102.27 
 (h)   Travelling Expenses   306.86   326.16
 (i)   Bank Charges   586.62   301.86 
 (j)   Directors’ Fees   3.40   2.20 
 (k)   Packing, Forwarding & Distribution Expenses (Net of Recoveries)   226.30   653.85 
 (l)   Commission & Brokerage   1,394.51   1,328.90 
 (m)   Bad Debts Written Off   75.00   75.00 
 (n)   Liquidated Damages   75.00   79.92 
 (o)   Advertisements & Sales Promotion Expenses    22.41   18.26 
  (p)   Payment to Auditors    16.13   16.13 
  (q)   Donations   -     11.66 
  (r)   Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility    2.05   -   
  (s)   Lease Rentals    67.19   69.26 
  (t)   Royalty Paid    151.02   27.68 
  (u)   Other Professional Consultancy Fees    417.78   382.40 
  (v)   General Administrative Charges    439.78   543.71 
  (w)   (Profit) / Loss on account of Exchange Variation    -     113.75 
  (x)   Loss on sale of Fixed Assets    -     11.83

             6,053.42   6,090.82
a. Auditors’ Remuneration   
 Auditors’ remuneration includes the following amounts paid or adjusted as paid to them during the year : 
 (i) As Auditors   11.83   11.83 
 (ii) For Taxation Matters  1.86   1.86 
 (iii) For Company Law Matters  -     -   
 (iv) For Management Services  -     -   
 (v) For Other Services  2.44   2.33 
 (vi) Re-imbursement of Expenses  -     0.11
        16.13   16.13

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015
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28.  CONTIGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS     
 (to the extent not provided for)   (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 

(a)  Contingent liabilities:
 Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt    
 (i) Disputed Excise Duty & Service Tax against Demand Notices received  5,380.65  2,294.18
 (ii) Disputed Sales Tax/Works Contract Tax  1,155.01  492.12 
 (iii) Service Tax disputed & paid under Protest  241.92  241.92 
 (iv) Sales Bills Discounted under LC with Banks   514.00  892.85 
 (v) In respect of arbitration proceeding as directed by Honorable Gujarat   154.19  154.19
  High Court in response to an application made by one of the contractor 
  of the company for ` 206.07 Lacs However the company has made a 
  counter claim of ` 200.00 Lacs  with the same arbitrator in response 
  and as per the books of account ` 51.88 Lacs is due to him.
 (vi) The company has provided Corporate Guarantee to SBI Consortium to   44,125.00  -
  the tune of ` 44,125.00 Lacs as a security for repayment of Financial 
  the facility availed by Elecon Engineering Company Limited, 
  a holding company. 

 Guarantees      
 (i) Guarantees issued by Company’s Bankers    50,301.85  55,460.04  

(b)  Commitments:  - - 

29.  RETIREMENT BENEFITS   
 i)   The Gratuity liability & liability in respect of Leave Encashment is determined based on the Actuarial Valuation done by Actuary as at 

Balance Sheet date in context of the Revised AS-15 issued by the ICAI, as follows:-

    Gratuity Leave Encashment
    As at  As at   As at  As at 
     31st March, 2015  31st March, 2014 31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014

 Expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss  :-
 Current Service Cost  30.07  38.67   16.83  26.10 
 Interest Cost (1.77) 49.63   13.55  11.35 
 Employer Contribution -     -     -    -
 Expected Return on Plan Assets - (39.55)  -    -   
 Net Actuarial (Gains) / Losses 33.19   103.57   30.37  (86.99)
 Past Service Cost  -    -     -    -   
 Settlement Cost  -     -     -    -   
 Total Expenses    61.49  152.32   60.75  (49.54) 

 Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet  : -     
 Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation  604.64  572.72   155.54  145.27 
 Fair value of plan assets  631.67  634.51   -    -   
 Funded status [Surplus / (Deficit)]   27.03  61.79   (155.54) (145.27)   
 Net asset / (liability)  27.03  61.79   (155.54) (145.27)
  Current Liability 27.03  61.79   (21.97) (24.24)
  Non Current Liability -    -     (133.57) (121.03)
Change in Obligation during the Year :-
 Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation at  572.72   601.53   145.27  137.63 
 beginning of the year      
 Current Service Cost 30.07  38.67   16.83  26.10 
 Interest Cost 53.43  49.63   13.55  11.35 
 Settlement Cost -     -     -     -   
 Past Service Cost  -     -     -    -   
 Employer Contributions  -     -     -    -   

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015
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 Change in Assets during the Year :-
  Plan assets at the beginning of the year  634.50   454.56 
  Settlements 
  Expected return on plan assets 55.20   39.55 
  Contributions by Employer  26.74  0.99 
  Transfer from other company  -     360.08 
  Actual benefits paid  (79.26) (244.70)
  Actuarial (Gains) / Losses (5.51) 24.02 
  Plan assets at the end of the year  631.67  634.50 
 Expected contribution during the year - - -     -
 Actuarial Assumptions:
  Discount Rate 9.33% 9.33% 9.33% 9.33%
  Expected rate of return on plan assets 8.70% 8.70% - -
  Mortality pre retirement -  -   
  Turnover rate 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
  Rate of escalation in salary (p.a.) 6.50% 6.50% 6.50% 6.50%

    Gratuity Leave encashment
    As at  As at   As at  As at 
     31st March, 2015  31st March, 2014 31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014

	 	 a.			 The	rate	of	escalation	in	Salary	(p.a.)	considered	in	actuarial	valuation	is	worked	out	after	taking	into	account	inflation,	
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market. Mortality 
rates are obtained from the relevant data of Life Insurance Corporation of India.   

  b.  The “Assets” for the gratuity ` 27.03 Lacs (previous year liability of ` 61.78 Lacs) as shown in the balance sheet is 
after adjusting the Fair value of plan assets (Invested with LIC/SBI) as at March 31, 2015 of ` 631.67 Lacs (previous 
year ` 634.51 Lacs).    

 iii)  The Company’s contributions paid/payable for the year to Provident Fund is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the year of ` 62.20 Lacs (Previous Year ` 101.74 Lacs)

29.  RETIREMENT BENEFITS  (Contd...)

30.  SEGMENT INFORMATION

 The Company has only one reportable segment i.e. “Material Handling Equipment” and hence disclosures requirement of 
Accounting Standard 17 (AS 17 - Segment Reporting) notified in Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 are not given.

31. EARNING PER SHARE  (` in Lacs, except per share data)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 

Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share (EPS) computed in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 20 “ Earning Per Share” 
(Before and after extraordinary items)   

 a) Profit for Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share as per Statement of Profit and Loss 253.61  169.54
 b) Weighted average number of equity shares  4,46,609  4,46,609  
 c) Earning Per Share (Basic & Diluted)  56.79  37.96  
 d) Face Value per Share  10.00  10.00

(` in Lacs)

 Liability Transferred in  -     -     -    157.28 
 Actuarial (Gains) / Losses  27.67   127.59   30.37  (86.99)
 Benefits Payments (79.26)  (244.70)  (50.48) (100.10)
   Present value of Defined Benefit  
 Obligation at the end of the year   604.64   572.72   155.54   145.27

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015
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32.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  
 Related Party Disclosures as required by Accounting Standard (AS) 18 are given below:

A)  Name of the related parties and nature of relationships :     

 a) Holding Company 
  (i) Elecon Engineering Company Limited

 b) Fellow Subsidiaries 
  (i) Elecon Middle East FZCO   
  (ii) Elecon Singapore Pte. Limited   
  (iii) Elecon Transmission International Limited, Mauritius   
  (iv) Benzler Systems AB, Sweden   
  (v) Radicon Transmission UK Limited, U.K.   
  (vi) AB Benzler, Sweden   
  (vii) Elecon USA Transmission Limited, USA   
  (viii) Benzler Transmission A.S., Denmark   
  (ix) Benzler Antriebstechnik GmbH, Germany   
  (x) Benzler TBA B.V., Netherlands   
  (xi) Benzler Antriebstechnik Gesmbh, Austria   
  (xii) OY Benzler AB, Finland   
  (xiii) Benzler SDN BDH Malaysia   
  (xiv) Benzler Italia s.r.l.   

 c) Individual having control/ significant influence   
  (i) Shri Prashant C. Amin

B)  Nature of Transactions :  (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 

 Purchase of Material / fin. Goods
  (i)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited  2,738.01  4,034.89 

 Job work Income from other Co.   
  (i)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited   95.48  1.44 

 Job work Expenses to other Co.
  (i)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited   42.24  59.71 

 Sale of Fin. Goods/Consumable Stores
  (i)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited  552.05   711.78 
  (ii)  Elecon Singapore Pte. Ltd.  194.08  -
  (iii)  Elecon Middle East FZCO  638.99   -   

 Sale of Fixed Assets
  (i)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited      192.75   44.31

 Expenses Charged to other Co.
  (i)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited  12.44   21.55   

 Exp. Charged by other Co.  
  (i)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited    871.21   481.05 

 Sales Commission  
  (i)  Elecon Middle East FZCO  12.44   4.37 
  (ii)  Elecon Singapore Pte. Limited  104.36   35.16    

 Slump sale of MHE Undertaking pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement
 Coverted to preference share capital/repaid     
  (i)  Elecon Engineering Company Limited  12,732.44  -

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015
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C)  Balance at Year End:  (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 

 (i) Outstanding Payables: 
  (a) Holding Company     
   Elecon Engineering Company Limited   18,787.88  33,434.67

  (b) Fellow Subsidiaries     
   (i) Elecon Middle East FZCO  14.69  -   
   (ii) Elecon Singapore Pte. Limited   107.38  -
 (ii)  Outstanding Receivables:     
  (a) Holding Company     
   (i) Elecon Engineering Company Limited    94.87  152.98

  (b) Fellow Subsidiaries     
   (i) Elecon Middle East FZCO  338.50  -   
   (ii) Elecon Singapore Pte. Limited  85.89  -

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

33.  DISCLOSURES SPECIFIED BY THE MSMED ACT   
 The company has not received information from vendors regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006 and hence, disclosure relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid/payable 
under this Act could not been given.

34.  CIF VALUE OF IMPORTS      (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 

 a) Raw Material  1,355.06  1,231.51 
 b) Stores and Spares   9.57  47.29 
 c) Capital Goods   -    19.71

35.  EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (ACCRUAL BASIS)      (` in Lacs)

      Year ended   Year ended
    31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 

 a) Interest   -    21.04 
 b) Technical Consultancy Fees  420.55 22.82 
 c) Others  211.32  50.81

36.  EARNINGS IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE    (` in Lacs)

      As at   As at
    31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014 

 a) Export of goods calculated on F.O.B. basis       
  Material Handling Equipments        1,754.81  784.11
 b) Royalty, know-how, professional and consultation fees  -      -   
 c) Service Income   -     15.63 
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37.  PROPOSED DIVIDEND     
 The Board of Directors have proposed equity dividend of ` Nil (Previous Year ` Nil) per equity share of ` 10.00 each. The 

aggregate amount of equity dividend proposed to be distributed is ` Nil (Previous Year ` Nil) Including Dividend Distribution 
Tax of ` Nil (Previous year ` Nil).    

38.  Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year’s 
classification/disclosure.

39.  Note 1 to 37 form an integral part of the financial statements.

Signature to Balance Sheet & Statement of Profit & Loss and Note 1 to 37.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

As per our report of even date attached    

For and on behalf of  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
THACKER BUTALA DESAI    
Chartered Accountants   
 P. M. Patel  P. C. Amin
 Director   Director 
M. T. Desai DIN : 00012138  DIN : 01056652 
Partner 
M. No. 030911 Rajat Jain Bharti Isarani
Firm Regi. No. 110864W Chief Financial Offcier Company Secretary

Place : Navsari Place : Vallabh Vidyanagar
Date : 05-05-2015 Date : 30-04-2015
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the 24th Annual 
General Meeting of members of Elecon EPC Projects 
Limited will be held at the Registered Office of the 
Company at C/o Elecon Engineering Company Limited, 
Anand-Sojitra Road, Vallabh Vidyanagar 388 120 on 
Thursday, the 13th day of August, 2015  at 12.30 p.m. to 
transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2015, Statement 
of Profit & Loss for the year ended on that date 
and Cash Flow Statements alongwith the Report 
of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Prashant C. 
Amin (DIN 01056652), who retires by rotation and 
being eligible, offers himself for re–appointment.

3. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modifications, following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) 
read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 (the ‘Rules’) including any statutory 
modification(s) or enactment thereof, for the time 
being in force; the appointment of M/s Thacker 
Butala Desai, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Regn. 
No. 110864W) made in the 23rd Annual General 
Meeting held on 4th August, 2014 be and is hereby 
ratified as Auditors of the Company to hold office 
from the conclusion of 24th Annual General 
Meeting till the conclusion of 25th Annual General 
Meeting at such remuneration plus Service tax 
at the applicable rate, from time to time, plus 
travelling and out-of-pocket expenses incurred 
by them for the purpose of audit of the Company’s 
accounts, exclusive of any remuneration, fees or 
charges payable to them for rendering any other 
services that may be rendered by them to the 
Company from time to time other than in the 
capacity of Auditors, as may be fixed by the Board 
of Directors of the Company be and is hereby 
ratified and confirmed.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modification(s), the following Resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions 
of Sections 149, 150, 152 and other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 
Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for 
the time being in force) and Clause 49 of the 
Listing Agreement, Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati (DIN 
00096280), who was appointed by the Board of 
Directors as an Additional Director pursuant 
to Section 161 of the Act of the Company with 
effect from 3rd February, 2015, and who holds 
office as such upto the date of this Annual 
General Meeting and who has submitted a 
declaration that she meets the criteria for 
independence as provided in Section 149(6) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and in respect of whom 
the Company has received a notice in writing 
under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 
from a member proposing her candidature for 
the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed 
as an Independent Director of the Company to 
hold office for five consecutive years from the 
date of this Annual General Meeting and shall 
not be liable to retire by rotation hereinafter in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013.”

5. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modification(s), the following Resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 148 and all other applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 [including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, 
for the time being in force], the Cost Auditors 
appointed by the Board of Directors of the 
Company, to conduct the audit of the cost records 
of the Company for the financial year ending 31st 

March, 2016, be paid the remuneration as set out 
in the Statement annexed to the Notice convening 
this Meeting.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors 
of the Company be and is hereby authorized to 
do all acts and take all such steps as may be 
necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to 
this resolution.”

 By order of Board of Directors,

Bharti Isarani
Company Secretary

Registered office:
C/o Elecon Engineering Co. Ltd.
Anand Sojitra Road,
Vallabh Vidyanagar 388 120.
   
Date  : 30-04-2015 

NOTICE



Elecon EPC Projects Limited  | 24th Annual Report 2014 - 15 71

1. Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed hereto.

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND 
AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. A person can act as proxy on 
behalf of members not exceeding 50 (fifty) and holding in the aggregate not more than 10 (ten) percent of the 
total share capital of the Company.

 The instruments of proxy in order to be effective, should be deposited at the registered office of the Company, 
duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. A proxy form 
is sent herewith. Proxies submitted on behalf of the Companies, Societies etc., must be supported by an 
appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable.

3. All documents referred to in the Notice or in the accompanying Statement are available for inspection by 
members on all working days, except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays, between 10.00 A.M. to 1.00 P.M. 
prior to the date of the Annual General Meeting and will also be available for inspection at the meeting.

4. Shareholders seeking any information with regard to accounts are requested to write to the Company at least 
10 days before the meeting so as to enable the management to keep the information ready

5. The members are requested to bring their copy of Annual Report at the meeting as no arrangement has been 
made to distribute additional copies available as a measure of economy.

6. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will 
be entitled to vote.

 By order of Board of Directors,

Bharti Isarani
Company Secretary

Registered office:
C/o Elecon Engineering Co. Ltd.
Anand Sojitra Road, 
Vallabh Vidyanagar 388 120.
   
Date  : 30-04-2015

NOTES
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
ITEM NO. 4
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and applicable rules made thereunder, 
the Company had, appointed Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati (DIN 00096280) as an Additional Director (Independent Director) 
w.e.f. 3rd February, 2015. In terms of Section 149, 152 and 161 of the Act, read with the relevant Rules, she holds office 
as an Additional Director upto the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers herself for 
appointment as a Director. 
The Company has received a notice in writing from a member along with the deposit of requisite amount under Section 
160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing the candidature of Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati as a Non-Executive Independent 
Director of the Company. 
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee has recommended and the Board has approved the appointment of Ms. 
Reena P. Bhagwati as an Independent Director as per her letter of appointment for a period of five years from the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati has given a declaration to the Board that she meets the criteria of independence as provided 
under Section 149(6) of the Act. In the opinion of the Board, she fulfills the conditions specified in the Act and the rules 
framed thereunder for appointment as an Independent Director and she is independent of the Management. 
In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, her appointment 
as a Non-Executive Independent Director is now being placed before the Members for their approval. 
The terms and conditions of the appointment of Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati as an Independent Director of the Company 
shall be opened for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours 
on any working day, excluding Saturdays and Sundays. 
She does not hold by herself or for any other person on a beneficial basis, any shares in the Company.
Except Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 
and their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 5. 
A brief profile of Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati is attached to the notice.

Item No. 5
The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment and remuneration of the 
Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending on 31st March, 2016 
as per the following details:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company. 

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution.

By order of Board of Directors,

Bharti Isarani
Company Secretary

Registered office:
C/o Elecon Engineering Co. Ltd.
Anand Sojitra Road, 
Vallabh Vidyanagar 388 120.
Gujarat.
  
Date  : 30-04-2015

Sr. No. Name of Cost Auditor Industry Audit Fees (Rs.)

 1. Y. S. Thakar & Co. Engineering 50,000/-  Plus Govt. Levies/
    Taxes as applicable and 
    out of pocket expenses at actual.
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Details of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

(Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement)

Name of Director

Date of Birth

Date of Appointment

Expertise in specific 
Functional areas

Shri Prashant C. Amin

09-08-1956

18-05-2012  

Shri Prashant Amin has 34 years of 
experience in successfully founding 
various new ventures in different 
geographies and operating small 
enterprises with strong leadership and 
operational direction. His business 
acumen and ‘hands on’ approach 
has been the key to his success 
with companies he has founded and 
nurtured.
On completion of his MBA, Shri Prashant 
Amin spent 3 years as a Cost Estimator, 
at Sargent Industries, where he proved 
his financial acumen in manufacturing 
planning and pricing. He returned to 
India in 1983, to start his first venture, a 
container /packaging company.
He founded Caltronics, a California, USA 
based company specializing in printed 
circuit board manufacture and turnkey 
solutions for the high tech electronics 
industry. Under his leadership as the 
COO, Caltronics grew from a five people 
company, to a forty people employer with 
annual revenues exceeding $10M.

Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati

26-08-1966

03-02-2015

Ms. Reena P. Bhagwati is a Director in various Companies 
of the Bhagwati group. Professionally, She is heading 
Bhagwati Autocast Ltd., a Public Limited Company, since 
2003-2004, as Joint Managing Director. She plays an 
active role in the day to day Management of the foundry.
She has been active in the Institute of Indian Foundrymen 
since 2007, and served as President – IIF in 2013-14.
She was Chairperson of the International Commission 
on HR & Training of WFO (World Foundry Organization).
Since 2006 she has been an elected member of the 
Confederation of Indian Industry (CII) Gujarat Council. She 
had been Conveyer of the CII Gujarat Skill Development 
Task Force since 2009. Since 2011 is an elected 
Member of National Council of CII and has been actively 
participating in all the activities in this premier industry 
body.
Skill development has always been of keen interest to her 
and she is actively involved in promoting it.
She is a member of the Governing Body of Ahmedabad 
Management Association, premier management 
association of Gujarat, Part of the All India Management 
Association.
She is a member of the YPO Gujarat Chapter since 
its formation and has held various positions such as 
Network Chair, Education Chair and as the Chapter 
Chairperson.

Qualifications

List of Public/Private 
Companies in which 
outside Directorship 
held as on 31st March, 
2015. 

Chairman/Member of 
the Committees of the 
Public Companies on 
which he is a Director 
as on 31st March 2015.

M.B.A. (Finance) (U.S.A) & Master Degree
in Engineering & Management

-  Akaaish Mechatronics Limited
-  Emtici Engineering Limited
-  Elecon Peripherals Limited
-  Eimco Elecon (India) Limited
-  Eimco Elecon Electricals Limited
-  Elecon EPC Projects Limited
- Elecon Engineering Company Limited
- Elecon Information Technology Limited
- Madhuban Prayas Resorts Limited
- Prayas Engineering Limited
-  Excel EPC Projects Private Limited
-  Power Build Private Limited
-  Elecon Hydraulics Private Limited

Elecon EPC Projects Limited
-  Audit Committee – Member

Eimco Elecon (India) Limited
- Audit Committee-Member

Elecon EPC Projects Limited
-  Audit Committee – Member

M.B.A from Carnegie Mellon University, Pittsburgh, 
USA.

- Bhagwati Filters Private Limited
-  Ved Skills Academy Private Limited
-  Bhagwati Autocast Limited
-  Bhagwati Spherocast Private Limited
-  Elecon EPC Projects Limited
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